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II|~ Luffey Huffman & Monroe CER11FIED PLIBI. IC ACCOUNTANIS 
PENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

City of Monroe, Louisiana Monroe, Louisiana 
We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the City of Monroe, Louisiana (the City) as of and for the year ended April 30, 1997, as listed in the accompanying Table of Contents. These general purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards for financial and compliance audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the provisions of Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-128, Audits of State and Local Governments; and the Louisiana Governmental Audit Guide issued by the Louisiana Leqislative Auditor and the Louisiana Society of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards and OMB Circular A-128 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. In our opinion, the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the City at April 30, 1997, and the results of its operations and cash flows of its proprietary fund types and nonexpendable trust funds for the year then ended, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. As discussed in Note 20, the City has experienced recurring losses in the General Fund and: certain Proprietary Funds and has significant unfunded liabilities relating to self- insurance activities. The general-purpose financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the amounts and classification of liabilities that might be required as a result of these items, as the outcome of these uncertainties is currently unknown. 

(318) 387-2672 FAX (318] 322-8866 1100N 18th $1 ~ PO BOX 4745 " Monroe LA 71211-4745 MEMBERS OF THE AME RICAN INS11PJ1E OF CERIlFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANIS 



City of Monroe, Louisiana Paf~e 2 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated Oclober 10, 1997 on our consideration of the City's internal control structure and a report dated October 10, 1997 on its compliance with laws and regulations. Out audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying information listed as Financial Statements of Individual Funds and Account Groups and Other Supplemental Information and Other Supplemental Information Schedules in the Fable of Contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the general purpose financial statements of the City. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole. 

October 10, 1997 



GENERAL PURPOSF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (OVERVIEW) 



 

ASSETS AND OTilER I)EI}IIS Currellt Assets: (]asb and ca~;b equivalents $ Cash illV~St nlf~llts Jllvesllnel)'ts, at cost Accounts Receivable, nO 1)uc from other funds lnvclltorics I)repaid itenls I{ond issuance costs Total current assets Restricted Assets: Cash and ca~b equivalents Total leStllclcd assets Advances Io oilier fuiids Deferred ~onlpel|sfltion plall assets Gellera] fixed assets Properly, plant and equipmenl, llet of acctnuldaled depreciation Zoo aninlals Aulounl available ill debl service flllld~; Amount to I)e provided for the retirement of Keneral hmg-term ol)ligatiol|s 

CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana COMBINED BALANCE SIIEET ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS AS OF APRIL 30, 1997 
GOVERNM~3NTAL FUNI) TYI'ES General Fund 

994,260 0 3,363 1,217,658 3,581,547 34,253 0 0 5,831,081 0 0 4,161,938 0 0 

Special Revenue l?unds 
$ 2,405,435 $ 0 5,716,248 674,290 5(/,200 0 0 0 8,846,173 0 

Debt Service Funds 
1,898,296 $ 0 90 838,405 157.424 0 0 0 2,894,215 0 0 

Capilal Project leullds 
2,701,944 5,00{),000 4,399,208 683,884 2,492,117 0 0 0 
0 

PROPRIE1 ~RY FUNI) TYIq8 Enterprise Funds 
1,278,077 2,895,812 0 868,136 1,592,767 667,709 104,904 7,520,100 

nlrrllll ~,ervice 1 und 
~9,46q 0 (l 33,~g6 2.920 (] 0 0 v6,27~ 282,824 0 282,824 0 2.132,0 0 0 54,444,907 75.422 0 

0 0 0 0 0 0 TOTAL ASSI"TS AND OTIII"R DEBITS $ 9,993,019 $ 8,846,173 $ 2,894,215 $ 15,277,153 $ 



FIDUCIARY FUNI) TYPES Agency Funds 
3,717,65;! $ 0 0 283,290 0 0 0 0 
3.71~ 3.714 0 529,157 0 0 0 0 

Trust Funds 
162,634 391,592 97.542 0 0 0 0 0 

ACCOUNT GROUPS General Fixed Assets General i,ong-Tcrm Obligations 
lblals (Memorandum Only) I'rimary Government 

$ 0 S 13,197,767 0 8,287,404 0 10,216,451 0 4,599,558 0 7,876,975 0 701,962 0 104,904 0 112,695 

Component Units 
646,791 0 0 7,997 59,277 0 493 0 

Totals (Memorandum Only) Reporting Emily 

651,768 0 0 45,097,716 714,558 45,812,274 0 0 0 0 0 0 41,268,112 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 .898,296 

286,538 6,593,950 529,157 41,268,112 54,444,907 75.422 
0 0 o 519,993 0 

286,538 286,538 6,593,950 529,157 41,268,112 54,964,900 75,422 1,898.296 0 1,898,296 
0 28,738,991 28,738,991 47,321 28,786.312 651.768 $ 41,268,112 S 30,637,287 $ 178,933.089 $ 1.281.872 $ 



CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana COM BINED 13ALANCE S !1 EET ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS AS OF APRIL 30, 1997 
GOVERNMF, NTAI, FUNI) TYPES Genera] Fund 

955,760 0 236,516 2,297,846 0 0 0 112,088 106,265 

0 

2,088,352 

Special ReVellll4~ 
2,610,576 0 1) 307,233 0 0 7.565 832,382 16.128 3,773,884 

0 

0 

Debl Service Funds 
0 $ 0 0 068.505 0 0 0 648,829 0 

Capital Project Funds 
447,053 0 0 2,028,064 0 0 0 0 0 

PROPRIITI %RY FUND '1YI'ES Eiilerprise Funds 
667,206 0 672,455 2,351,262 305.000 0 0 15.488 363.121 

0 

0 

0 0 
205.000 52,458 952,901 4,329,563 0 330.000 2.320.000 0 0 0 0 0 0 318.254 5,796,827 3,773,884 1,717,334 2,475,117 12,625,200 

nt('rnal Service lurid 
0 ~08,287 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ;? S08,787 

(} 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 ~()8,287 



CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana COMBINED BALANCE SHEET ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (CONTINUED) AS OF APRIL 30, 1997 

FUNI) EQUITY: ('ontributed capital Investment in general fixed assets Retained carnings/(deficil): Ullrcser vc:d Fund balancc/(dcficils) Reserved for: I hnployce rcliremcnt hlvenlorics Capital improvement Debt service Advances to other funds Unrcscr vc d/undcsignated Total fttnd equily (Deficit 'I'OTAI~ LIABI LITIES AND FUNI) EQUITY 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNI) TYPES General l~'und 

0 34,254 0 0 4,161,938 0 4,196,192 

Special Revenue I?llllds 

0 0 4,638,967 0 0 433.322 5,072,289 

Debt Service Funds 

0 0 0 1,176,881 0 0 

Capilal Projecl Funds 

0 0 9,419,152 0 0 3,382,884 12,802,036 

PROI'R1E'I ARV FUNI) TVI'I S Enterprise FlllldS 66,338,930 0 

$ 9,993,019 $ 8,846,173 $ 2,894,215 $ 15,277,153 $ 62,323,253 $ 

iflcrnal b.cr~ ice I trod 



FIDUCIARY FUNI1 TYPES Agency Funds 

0 

Trust Funds 

651,768 0 0 0 0 651.768 

ACCOUNT GROUPS General Fixed Assels 0 41,268,112 0 

General Long-Tcrnl Obligafions 
Tolals (Memorandum Only) Primary Government 66,338,930 41,268,112 (16,640,877) 
651,768 34,254 14,058,119 1,176,881 4,161,938 3,816,206 14,865,331 

Component Units 0 519,993 0 
t/ {I 0 0 201.152 

Totals (Menlorandum Only) Reporting Entity 66,338,930 41,788,105 
651,768 34,254 14,058,119 1,176,881 4,161,938 4,017,358 115,586,476 $ 4,533,822 $ 651,768 $ 41,268,112 $ 30,637,287 $ 178,933,089 $ 1,281,872 $ 180,214,96 



B E'.'ENU ES Ta~cs: Ad Valorem Sak, s Other taxes Penalties and interest on laxes Assessments I.i~nses and pe rndts lntergovcrnmcnlal: l'cderal fund~ Slate funds |~cal funds lees. charges ard ~mmissions for sc rvi~ Fines and forfeitures Renl find interc:a in~me C)lher revenu~ s h~al r~ w'nu( s I,:~ p I.: N i ) i "1 t JR I,k~; Current: General Gov( rnmcnt: Ixgglative Judicial Executive Finan~ and Adminislration Olhcr GcnerM Government Public safety I'oblic wolks lIeahh and welfare Cullurc nlld recreation Economic de~elopmenl and assistan~ Debt scrvi~ I'rincipal repay*ncnt Inlercst and fiscal charges Capilal Outlay Iolal ~xtx'n diturcs EXCESS fl)EFICIENCYI ()~" REVENUES OVER EXI'}:NI)ITURES of IIER FINANCING SOURCES [USES) Sales of ~ssets l'roa'eds frt~m o:rlificales of indebtedness Other s~nree and uses Oper~ling transfers in Ot~r:~ting transfers out Total other flhaneing south's (uses) EXCESS fl)EE'ICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTIII':R SOUR( ES OVER EXI'ENDITURES AND OTIIER USES FI]ND BAI.ANCE (DEFICITh beginning of year as p~qously relmrlrd CORRECTION OF AN ERROR (Nol~ 16] I'UNI) BALANCE d H,:EI CITh beginning of }'ear ns reslated N'rERFI;NI) EQUIT? TIIk.NSEEIIS (Note 12 

CITY OF MONROE Monroe. l~uMana COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CIIANGES IN FUND BALANCES ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30,1997 SPECIAl, G ENI':RAI, REVENUE FUND l"O NI)8 $ 5.765.200 $ 35.829.719 34L934 0 0 2.354,016 325.504 1.897.150 103,925 5.217.163 571.952 372.424 203.367 52,982,354 
214.877 1360.988 156.150 4,184.869 713.866 6.370.956 8.210,988 0 3.989559 0 2.038,435 52.420 3,634.782 

DEBT SERVI(!E FUNI)S 

0 0 0 0 0 57.618 1,027542 

TOTALS ( M EMOI)~ANI)Id M ONLY) CAPITAL PROJECT PRIMARY COMPONENT FUNDS GOVERNMENT UNITS 

847.619 249.726 0 0 0 78375 12.945 
2.975.307 2257.010 108.925 5.363.187 573.113 876.691 1.330,232 
.290,873 284,633 0 16313 18296 

0 0 387,705 4,390.449 
264.184 191,827 0 

o 0 o 10,594,324 10594,305 747.859 

0 0 5,338,483 5,338.483 4.149.418) 0 13.950.000 0 ].819.133 (747,8477 15,021,286 

2.302,619 :!44,247 9,360.970 

1.570 

44.134 8,064 20.814 

5.036.698 0 5.036.698 (228,574) 
6,349,678 0 (378.654) ___~ 1_~2.465~_ (511,119) 0 

,930.168 12.937.890 233328 0 (132,465) 0 12,805.425 (2:]8.574) I"IIND IIAI,A NCI'; fl ) I':I"IC ITI. END OF YEAR $ 4.196,192 8 5,072,289 $ 1 J76.881 $ 12,802,036 $ 23,608A36 $ 201,152 $ 

"IOIAI ~ (811':MOR CM )IIM Or'l ~, R EPOR'I PIG E%'I II "I 

: {r)9 , ,,if~ y ,~,3 ~:: ]s 



CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CllANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL GENERAL AND SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30,1997 

REVENUES rl aX,-S: Ad Vnlorem Salts Olhcr taxes Penalties and inlcrcst on taxes Intergovc rnmen al Fees. charges and commissions for servi~s Fines and forfeitures Rent and im~ r~st in.me OIher revenues "[mal revenues EXPENI)I'I UII ES Current: General Government: l~gislative Judleial Execufivc I~nan~. and Administration Other General Government Public safety Public works 1 leahh and wc If are Cullurc and rcerealion I~)nomic dcwlopment and assistan~ Debt servi~ Capilal Outlay Total exwnditures EXCESS {I)EFICI[~NCY} Ol" REVENIIES ()'VEIl EXpENI)I'I I!11 ES ol I1ER FINANCING .SOURCE.~ (US~; Sales of ;lssels Other sourec s anJ uses Owrallng tr~nsh rs in Otx raling transfers out "lk,tal other financing sour~s (uses) EXChSS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTIIER SOURCES OVEII EXPENDITURES AND ()TILER USES 1'lIND IIALANCE b :ginning of year N'[ERFtlNU ],:gill]',' TRANSFERS (Nole 1~ PUND BAI,AN(:['; I])EHCITI. END OF YEAR 

GENERAL F'L1NI) BUDGET ACTUAL 

(656,638) 5.036.698 

71.599 1,795.680 407.636 _L!~,54 ~2~_ (12,266,397) 
(611,932[ 5.036.698 

VARIANCE - F A'V OR AP.LE (UNFAVORABLE) 
$ 174.200 $ 1.025.375 3,934 0 1,050.705 385,179 45A52 50,924 (24.533) ~2,711.236 
7,124 (35.627) 32.831 (Y15.99~) 30,410 (1.477,667) 152,706 0 (206.093) 0 (12231~) 752,329 

SPECIAl, REVENU E FUNDS 

2,327,429 107.800 0 170379 102588 2308,196 2,518,755 

205,038 4.333,433 2,182A63 177,800 10.650 0 87.634 
200.500 2.157,522 1,461,847 182,875 (I 0 387705 

1,599 (316,000) (92,289) (1,277.544) (1,684.234) 
0 0 9.766.200 (].361) 9364.839 
r? o 1(i.594.324 09) 10,594.305 

6.351,807 0 

I'l]l ~.224 I.](ll )1.495 ll,.71~ qu441 

4 53~ I~h.(ll ;'~616 5075 :65{I 
','~56'; 



OPERATING REVENUES Charges lot ~;erviees Contributions hlte rest Income Other operaling revenu e Total operating revenue OI'EItATING EXPENSES Salaries. wages and benefits Matelials. repairs and supplies Utilities and communications I)eprecialion and amOrlizalion Insurance Ilenefils paid 1o participanls Reinsurance,conversion prelniu ins Admiais~ratLee services Prolnot er's e q~enses (llher operating expenses Total operating expenses OPEI~A'I'ING INCOME (I,OSS 

CITY OF MONROF. Monroe, Louisiana COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, FXPENSES AND CllANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCE ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND SIMILAR TRUST FUNDS FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 1997 

NONOPEIIATING REVENUE (EXPENSE) (1pc raling gr~nts Gain (loss) on sale of assets lnleresl ineollle Interest expense l'~opcrty lax('s 'lotal nolloperating revenue (expense) NCOME fLOSS) IIEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS OPEllATIN1; TI;tANSFERS IN (OUT) operating Iransfers in Operaling Iransfers (out) Total op( ratillg transfers in (OXlt) NET (LOSS EPI~ECIATION ON ASSETS ACQUIRED IIY ~~RAN3' RETAINEll EAI~NINGS (1)EIrICIT)/FUNII BALANCE, I~gillHblg of year I{ETAINFI) EAIININGS (I)IqFICITI/FIdND BALANCE~ ENI1 OF YEAR 

PROPR|ETARY lrtfND 'IYPES ENq~ERPRI S E FUNDS $ 10,965.99] 8 0 0 7,947 

598.870 214.494 159.413 (182.625) 1.423.763 
2.241.818 -- (521,594) ],720,224 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 0 $ 4.869.169 0 211.366 
0 0 0 0 0 4.640.768 238.724 202.771 0 0 5.082.263 (1.728) 
0 0 1.728 0 0 728 0 
C 0 

FIDUCIARY FUND TYPE - TRUST FUNDS 0 70,400 34,376 0 04.776 
0 0 0 0 0 36.974 0 2.244 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTALS (MEMORANDUM ONI,YI 0.965.991 4.939.569 34.376 219.313 
6.093.299 5.295.489 1.718.577 3.330.935 126.639 4.777.742 238.724 205~15 680.316 2.067.794 
598.870 214.494 161.141 (182.625 .423.763 

0 0 0 (3,1.442) 0 591.568 
(12,14],263) 



CASII PROVII)ED (USED) BY OPERA'I [NG A(~IVITIES ()~xr ating Inec,me (I~ss) Adjustments to Re~ncile Operating h~n~e (f~SSl xo Net C~sb I)ro%6ed (I.lsed) by Operating Activities: I)epreeiation and amortization Gain (loss) oll sale of assets Changes i a current assets and liabilities A~unts revivable Inventory Prepaid expenses Due from other funds A~unts payable Due to other funds I)cferrcd revenue Othcr. gel Tolal Adjuslmenls Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (ASII PROVII)ED (IISEI)) BY NONCAPII'AI~ I. INANCING ACTIVITIES Operating transfers in Operating tramfers out Increase in cus:omer deposits Grants Property taxes Net cash provided by noncapilal financing activifes CASII PROVII)EI) (IISEI)) BY CAPITAL AND RELA'I'I~;I ) ["INANCI NG ACTIVITIES Conlribut( d capital l'r~,eds front sale of assets Decrease in DEQ liability Acquisi0on~ of eapilal assets Reclass of investments to cash equivalents Redemptkm of invcslments ('ash used for bond refunding Prineipel paid on bonds Interest paid on bonds Net cash provided fused) by capital and related financing activities CASII I'RO'~IDED :USED) BY I NVI,kSTI N(; ACI IVITIES Interest hlcom~ NCREASE IN CASH AND CASII EQUIVALENTS :ASII AND CASII I:QUIVAI,ENTS. beginning of year CASll AND CASII I;QUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR 

CITY OF MONROI Monroe, Louisiana COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ALL PROPRIETARY ]~q[JNI) TYPES AND SIMILAR 11RUST I,~JNDS FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30,1997 

SIIOWN ON ACCOMPANYING COMBINED BALANCE SI I EEl" AS: (:ash and cash equivalents (ash investnlents Restricted assets: Cash and cash equivalents "10"IA I. 

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES FII)UCIAR Y TOTALS ENT ERPR I SI'~ IN'I ERNAL FUND TYPE- (MEMORANIIUM FUNDS SERVICE FUND TRUST FUNDS ONLY) 
3330,935 204.'18g 

2.241.818 (521.594 (171.656 59g.870 ] .423.763 3,571.20 
919.717 53.118 (.131,746) (1.594.,~D3) 0 0 0 (241.504) _ _(.Ls~,2 .~2. ___0_,_42 7,~ ~. 

0 0 

12.717 

0 

3,330,935 204.788 425.667 14,329 (10,269) 1.377,O90 589398 745574 (37,030) (72,453) f34,442 ) ( 1.807,25.~)_ 

391.5!12 .. 5 f0,2 0 0 554.842 
159.413 1,728 0 14,445 25,024 520.4ID 33.826 

2,241,818 (521.594 (171,656 598.870 1,423.763 
919,717 53.418 (431246) (1,594,403) 391.592 163.250 0 (241.504) (182,6251 (922,301) 

$ 4,456.914 $ 39,469 $ 554.226 $ 5,050,409 
$ 1,278.077 $ 2,g95,812 282.825 $ 4,456314 $ 0 39.4~ 

162.634 $ 391,592 0 554.21~- 
1,480.180 3.287.404 282.825 5,050,409 



CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES The City of Monroe, Louisiana (the City) operates under a Home Rule Charter approved by the voters in 1979. This charter provides for an executive branch of government headed by a mayor and a legislative branch of government consisting of five council members. The City's combined balance sheet includes the accounls of all city operations. The City's major operations include police and fire protection, garbage and trash collection, parks and recreation (which include three golf courses; other cultural activities and general administration services). In addition, the City owns and operates six maior enterprise activities: airport, water and sewerage systems, mass transit system, civic center, and gardens and zoo. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) promulgates generally acceptcd accounting principles and reporting standards with respect to activities and transactions of state and local government entities. The GASB has issued a codification of governmental accounting and financial reporting standards. This codification and subsequent GASB pronouncements arc recognized as generally accepted accounting principles for state and local government. The financial reporting practices of the City comply with financial reporting standards established by the GASB. A. REPORTING ENTITY As the governing authority of the City, for reporting purposes, the City of Monroe is considered a separate financial reporting entity. The financial reporting entity consists of (a) the primary government (the City), (b) organizations for which lhc primary government is financially accountable, and (c) other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such thai exclusion would cause the reportin? entily's financial statements to be misleading or ir~complete. 
GASB Statement 14, The Financial Reporting EntiO,, sets forth criteria for determining which, if any, eomponertt units should be considered part of the City of Monroe for financial reporling proposes. The basic criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is financial accountability. The GASB has set forth criteria to be considered in determining financial accountability, which include: 1. Appointing a voting majorily of an organization's govcrning body, and 
a. The ability of the City to impose its will on that organization and/or 



CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) A. REPORTING ENTITY (Continued) b. The potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or impose specific financial burdens on the City. 2. Organizations for which the City does not appoint a voting majority but arc fiscally dependent on the City. Organizations for which the reporting entity financial statements would hc misleading if data of the potential component unit wcrc not included because of the nature or significance of the relationship. Based on the previous criteria, the City has determined that the following component units should be considered as part of the City reporting entity. Monroe City Court - The Monroe City Court is a legally separate entity. The City appoints none of the governing board (Judges) of the court. Judges of the court arc independently elected officials. Although the City Council can, to a limited degree, impose its will on the court through City Council ordinances, the City provides office space, court facilities and some furnishings and compensation to the courl. Also, surplus funds in the court's General Fund are to be remitted to the City's General Fund. Although the court functions entirely within the City of Monroe, it provides no direct services to the City or Cily Council. Based on the above, it has been determined that the court is a component unit of the City and should be included in the City's financial statements through discrete presentation. 
Monroe City Marshal - The Monroe City Marshal's office is a legally scparatc cntity. The City does not appoint the governing board (marshal) of the marshal's office. The City Marshal is an independently elected official. Although the City cannot imposc its will on the City Marshal, it does provide a portion of his compensation, facilitics and fumishin~,s. Although the City Marshal functions cntircly within the City of Monroe, he provides no direct service to the City but is rathcr an officer of the City court. Based on the above, it has been determined that the City Marshal is a component unit of the City and should be included in the City's financial statements through discrete presenlalion. 
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CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) A. REPORTING ENTITY (Continued) During fiscal 1997, two not-for-profit entities were created to perform administrative functions for the City's two incremental sales tax economic development districts. These entities are the Tower Drive Economic Development Corporation and the Garrett Road Economic Development Corporation. The City Council appoints the board of directors for one of the not-for-profits and the City Council is the board of directors for the other not-for-profit. In addition, the Mayor can remove any board member at will and the existence of the incremental sales tax pledge fidfills the specific: financial burden called for by GASB 14. For financial reporting purposes, these entities are considered an inte~,ral part of the City, not component units, on a substance-over-form basis. This decision is due to the City keeping the books and records for the not-for-profits, lhe City as a whole reaping the benefits from the use of the proceeds of the incremental tax bonds, and that the board and the separate not- for-profits are ministerial and structural in nature, as disbursement of funds is subject to the control of the City. As such, they are presented as separate Debt Service and Capital Project funds within those categories of the City. lncluded in the evaluation of potential component units of the City of Monroe were lhe Monroe City School Board, the Ouachita Council of Governments, the Monroe Housing Authority, the City of Monroe Employees Credit Union, the Monroe/West Monroe Public Trust Financing Authority and the Ouachita Civil Defense Agency. None of these entities were determined to be component units of the City of Monroe reporting entity. 
B. FUND ACCOUNTING The City uses funds and account groups to report on its financial position and die results of its operations. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating transactions related to certain govermnent functions or activities. A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts that comprises its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. An account group, on the other hand, is a financial reporting device designed to provide accountability for certain assets and liabilities (general fixed assets and general long-term obligations) that are not recorded in the "funds" because they do not directly affect net expendable available financial resources. They arc concerned only with the measuremen! of financial position, not with the measurement of results of operations. 



CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) B. FUND ACCOUNTING (Continued) Funds are classified into three calegories; governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. Each category, in turn, is divided into separate "fund types". Governmental funds arc used to account for a government's general activities, where lhe focus of attention is on the providing of services to the public as opposed to proprietary funds where the focus of attention is on recovering the cost of providing services to the public or other agencies through service charges or user fees. Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held for others. The City's current operations require the use of the governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary fund categories. The fund types used by the City are described as follows: Governmental Funds 
General Fund 
This fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all financial resources of the City except for those required to be accounted for in another fund. Special Rew~nue Funds These funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. 
Debt Service Funds These funds are used to account fbr the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest and related costs. All general obligation bonds are direct obligaiions of the City. Principal and interest are payable from ad valorem taxes levied on all taxable property and improvements within |he City. All special assessment debts are secured by liens on assessed properties and backed by the full faith and credil of the City. Special assessment debt is accounted for in the Debt Service Funds. Incremental Sales Tax Bonds are secured by a pledge of incremental state (40%) and City (60%) sales and use taxes within the boundaries of the respective districts and do not involve the pledge of the full faith and credit of the City. ln('remental Sales Tax Bonds are accounted for in the General Long Term Debt Account Group. 



CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana Notes To The Financia! Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) B. FUND ACCOUNTING (Continued) Capital Project Funds These funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities, improvements and other major projecls (other than those financed by Proprietary Funds). Proprietary Funds 
Enterprise Funds These funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges, or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability or other purposes. Net cash losses of the Enterprise Funds are subsidized by the General Fund with the exception of the Utility Department and the Sewer Department. 
hlternal Service Fund This fired is used to account for employee group insuranee to provide medical coverage for covered employee illness or injury. Employee and employer contributions to the Fund are recognized as operating revenue. The fund is reinsured for individual employee illness or injury in excess of $50,000 for any year. Fiduciary Funds 
Trust and Agency Funds These funds are used to account tbr assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments, and/or other funds. These include Agency Funds and Pension Trust Funds. Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations. Pension trust funds account for pension funds established for classified 



CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana 
Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (,Continued) Trust and Agency Funds (Continued) enrployees of various departments and are accounted for in essentially the same manner as proprietary funds since capital maintenance is critical. 
C. GENERAL FIXED ASSETS AND LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 
General fixed assets are not capitalized in the ftmd used to acquire or construct theol. hrstead, capital acquisition and construction are reflected as expenditures (capital outlay) in the governmental funds and the related assets are reported in the General Fixed Assets Account Group. All purchased fixed assets are: valued at cost where historical records are available and at estimated cost where no historical records arc available. Donated fixed assets are valued at their fair market value on the dalc received. 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of fixed assets or materially extend their useful lives are not capitalized but are recorded as a normal expenditure of the governmental funds. No depreciation is recoglfized on general fixed assets. 
Prior to 1985, the City had not rnainlained fixed asset records on a current basis. Subsequently, the City completed reconstructing its general fixed asset records, lu those cases where it was not feasible to determine the original actual cost the assets were recorded at estimated cost derived by price level adjusting current replacement cost. It was not considered practicable to determine the source of investmenl in general fixed assets prior to April 28, 1972. Public domain general fixed assets (infrastructure) consisting of certain improvements ineluding streets, bridges, curbs and gutters, sidewalks, drainage systems, traffic signals and lighting systems, are not capitalized since these assets arc immovable and of value only to the City. Certain real property (land and buildings) of the Monroc City School Board which were acquired with City funds are recorded in the School Land and Buildings account. Fixed assets of the enterprise tiands are recorded at cost, if purchased, and at fair market value at date of gift, if donated. Major additions are capitalized while repairs and maintenance which do not improve or extend the life of the respective assets arc charged to expense. Contributions received in aid of construction are credited to contributions accounts and do nol affect the cost of the assets acquired with such contributions. 



CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) C. GENERAL FIXED ASSETS AND LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued) Depreciation of all exhaustible fixed assets used by enterprise funds is charged as an expense against their operations. Depreciation on assets acquired by grants is recaptured to retained earnings in the Sewer and Livestock Arena Funds. The remaining enterprise funds have been in operation for many years, and the City has elected not to recapture deprecialion on items acquired by grmlt due to the cos( of assessing the amount of each asset acquired by grant. Accurnulated depreciation is reported on enterprise fund balance sheets. Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives are as follows: 
Water and Electric Plant Facilities Buildings Sewer Lines, Pumps and Plant hnprovements Equipment 

30-50 Years 10-50 Year,,; 10-30 Years 7-50 Years 2-20 Year,,; Long-terrn liabilities expected to be finmlced from govermnental funds are accounted for in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group, not in the governmental funds. Long-term liabilities expected to be financed from enterprise fund operations are accounted for in those enterprise thnds. D. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
The financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. All governmental funds are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements for these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. The modified accrual basis of accounting is used for reporting all governmental fund types and the fiduciary fund type agency funds. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e.. when they become both measurable and awfilable). "Measurable" means the amount of the lransaclion can be determined and "available" means collectible within the current! period or soon enough thereafter to be used Io pay liabilities of the current period. 



CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana 
Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) D. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (Continued) The City uses the following practices in recognizing and reporting revenues and expenditures in the governmental fund types: Revenues: Ad valorem taxes attach as an enfoiceable lien on property as of January 1 of each year. Taxes are levied by the Cily in October or November and are hi/led to taxpayers in December. Billed taxes become delinquent on January 1 of the following year; however, by precedent, this is normally extended until February 1. Revenues from ad valorem taxes are budgeted in the year billed to the extent collections are expected. The City bills and collects its own properly taxes using the assessed values determined by the lax assessor of Ouachita Parish. 
Sales taxes are considered "measurable" when in the bands of the City "Sales Tax Collector" and are recognized as revenue at that time. F~;deral and slate grants are normally "expenditure driven", which means that lhe City does not earn, or is not entitled to, the grant funds until a liability for the expenditure has been incurred. Amounts received in excess of actual expenditures at year end is reflected as deferred revenue on the fund's balance sheet. Interest earnings on time deposits are recognized as revenue when the time deposits have matured and the interest is available. Substantially all olher revenues are recognized when actually received by the City. Ad valorem laxes, grants, fees, charges and commissions tbr services have been treated as susceptible to accrual. Expenditures 
Expenditures in the governmental funds are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related fund liability is incurred. 



CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) D. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (Continued) Expenditures (Continued) 
Compensated absences are recognized as expenditures when leave is actually taken or when employees, or their heirs, are paid for accrued leave upon retirement or death. The cost of leave privileges not requiring current available resources are recognized in the General Long Term Obligations Account Group. The cost of leave privileges in the Enterprise Funds are accrued when incurred under the accrual basis of accounting. Principal and interest on long-term debt is recognized when clue 
t'roprietao~ and Pension Trust Funds All proprietary funds and pension trust funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues are recognized when they are earned, and their expenses are recognized when they are incurred. Fiducialy Funds 
Fiduciary Funds include ]'rust and Agency Funds. Trust and Agency Fund assets and liabilities are accounted for on the modified accrual basis of accounting, except for the pension trust funds, which are discussed above. Other Financing Sources (Uses) Proceeds from issuing long-term debt and transfers between funds that are not expected to be repaid are accounted for as o'ther financing sources (uses) and arc recognized when the underlying events occur. E. BUDGET PRACTICES The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in these financial statements: 1. At least ninety days prior to the beginning of the fiscal year, the mayor submits to the City council an operating and capital budget for the succeeding year. 



CITY OF M[ONROE Monroe, Louisiana Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) E. BUDGET PRACTICES (Continued) 

5. All legally adopted budgets of the City generally accepted accounting principles 
lapse at year end. Capital is completed or deemed 

are adopted on ~ basis consistent with (CAAe). For the year ended April 30, 1997, the City adopted a budget for the General Fund and all Special Revenue funds, with the exception of the MPD Law Enforcement Block Grant, the Junior Tennis fund and the Prosecuting Attorney Intervention Fund. 
F. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Under state law, the City may deposit funds in demand deposits, money market accounts, or lime deposits with state banks organized under Louisiana law and national banks their having principal offices in Louisiana. At April 30, 1997, the City has cash and cash equivalents totaling $13,484,305, as follows: 
Petty cash Demand deposits Time deposits Master cash management agency account 
Total 

$ 14,452 12,202,984 123,092 1.143.777 



CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana 
Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) F. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 
Tlrese deposits are stated al cost, which approximates market. Under stale law, these deposits (or resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by lhe fiscal agent bank. The market value of pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times equal the amount oll deposit with the fiscal agent. These securities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to both parties. Cash and cash equivalents (hank balances) at April 3(I, 1997, are secured as follows: 
Bank balances Federal dcposit insurance Pledged securities (uncollateralizcd) Total 

$ 200,308 13,806,397 
Because lhe pledged securities are held by a custodial bank in the name of "the agent bank rather than in the name of the City, they are considered uncollateralized (Category 3) under the provisions of GASB Codification C20.106; however, Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1229 imposes a statutory requirement ou the custodial bank to advertise and sell the pledged securities within 10 days of being notified by the City that the fiscal agent bank has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand. For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments with a maturity date of three months or less when purchased. Included as cash equivalents for purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows are lhc LAMP investments as more defined in Note 1G. 
The master cash management agency account is utilized for the iuvestmenl of daily idle cash of the City. The account is managed by the City's fiscal agent, lnvestnrcnts are in Goldman, Sachs and Co. Treasury Obligation Fund, which consists of securities issued or guarauteed by the U.S. government. Investments are in accordance with LRS 33:2955(A)(1)(e) and are not required to he covered by the pledge of securities owned by fiscal agent bank. 



CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) G. INVEST)IIENTS 
Under state law, the City may invest funds in obligations of" the United States, in federally-insured investments, or in time deposits with state banks organized under Louisiana law and national banks having their principal offices in Louisiana. In addition, local governments in Louisiana are authorized to invest in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool, Inc. (LAMP), a non-profit corporation formed by an initiative of the State Treasurer and organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana, which operates a local government investment pool. At April 30, 1997, the City had the following investments stated at cost, which approximates market: 
United States government securities Trust Morley Market Investor Account LAMP $ 4,500,203 5,716,248 8,287,404 $18,503,855 The investments in United States government securities are held by the City's agent in the City's name, and are considered collateralized (Category 1) under the provisions of GASB Codification 150.164. ]'he money market account is used to earn interest on temporarily idle funds of the City. ]'he rate of interest earned on investments in the account fluctuates, based on the national money market. The account is considered uncollateratized (Category 3) under the provisions of GASB Codification I50.164 and is secured by the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent. 
In accordance with GASB Codification 150.165 the investment in LAMP at April 30, 1997, is not categorized in the three risk categories provided by GASB Codification 150.164 be, cause the investment is in the pool of funds and therefore not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form. Only local governments having cor~tracted to participate have an investment interest in its pool of assets. The primary objective of LAMP is to provide a safe environment for the placement of public funds in short-term, high-quality investments. The portfolio includes only securities and other obligations in which local governments in Louisiana arc authorized to invest. Accordingly, investments are restricted to securities issued, guaranteed or backed by the U.S. Treasury, U.S. government, or one of its agencies, enterprises, or instrumentalities, as well as repurchase agreements collateralized by those securities. The dollar weighted average portfolio maturity of LAMP assets is 
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CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) G. INVESTMENTS (Continued) restricted to not more than 90 days, and consists of no securities with a maturity in excess of 397 days. LAMP is designed to be highly liquid to give its participants immediate access to their account bal~mces. 11. INVENTORIES 
Inventories are valued at average cost less writedowns for obsolete items, lnvcntorics in the General and Proprietary Funds consist of expendable supplies and repair and maintenance items held for consumption. 
ACCUMULATED VACATION, SICK PAY, AND OTItER EMPLOYEE BENEI~TT AMOUNTS Accumulated unpaid vacation, sick pay, and other employee benefit amotmts are accrued when incurred in Enterprise Funds under the accrual basis of accounting. Such anaounls are not accrued in governmental funds under the modified accrual basis of accounting. However, such amounts are reflected in the General Long Term Obligations Account Group. 
Full time employees may earn up to 33 working days per year depending upon length of service. At the end of each year, employees may carry forward up to 120 days of vacation time. Subject to tile abow~ conditions, unused vacation is paid to an employee upon retirement, separation, or death at hourly rates being earned by that employee upon separation. The City also maintains a disability compensation plan which allows employees to draw an additional 30 days paid disability leave, once all tile available sick and vacation accruals have been utilized. Individuals with long-term disability status arc then eligible for an additional 180 days of disability leave at 60 percent of their regular pay. Such amounts are nol accrued in governmental funds, nor are they reflected in the General Long Term Obligations Account Group due to the inability to estimate such liabilities, and the fact that any unused disability leave does not carry forward to the subsequent year. For the year ended April 30, 1997, the City paid $63,955 under its adopted disability compensation plan relating to the 180 day long- term disability policy. Tile amounts paid during fiscal year 96-97 relating to the 30 day disability leave are not determinable as the amounts are paid through the City's normal sick leave compensated absences system and not accounted for separately. 
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CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOIJNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
L ACCUMULATED VACATION, SICKPAY, AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFIT A)~IOUNTS (Continued) Firemen and policemen may receive up to one year's sick leave per illness as prescribed under Louisiana law. For all other City employees, sick leave is accumulated at varying rates ranging up to 12 days per year. A maximum of 120 days of unused sick leave may be ean-icd forward. Subject to the above limitations, employees shall be compensated in cash for any accumulated unused sick leave when they are pemaanently separated from employment as a result of vohmtary resignation, discharge, retirement or death. In the event of death, payment is made to the estate of the employee. The amount of payment for all unused sick leave is calculated at the employee's rate of pay in effect on the payday immediately preceding the employee's separation. J. BAD DEBTS 
Uncollectible amounts fox customers' utility fees receivable are recognized as bad debts through the establishment of an allowance account at the time information becomes available which would indicate the uncollectibility of the particular receivable. The allowance was $25,433 as of April 30, 1997. K. RESERVES OF FUND EQUITY Some portions of fund balance and/or retained earnings are reserved to indicate that a portion of fund equity is legally restricted to a specific t~ture use and is not available for appropriation or expendilures. In the General Fund, all of lhe fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for expenditure or appropriation as it consists of advances to certain Enterprise Funds which the Fmterprise Funds cannot repay on a current basis. 
L. DEDICATED REVENUES Sales taxes: 
The one-half per cent city sales tax is dedicated to the General Fund for payment of salaries of city employees and capital improvements. The sales tax, which began on March 1, 1968, is for an indefinite period. 
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CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) L. DEDICATED REVENUES (Continued) The one per cent city sales tax is dedicated to the General Fund for any lawfld purpose of the City, iucluding payment of operating expenses. The sales tax, which began on January 1, 1975, is for an indefinite period. The one per cent city sales tax is dedicated to the General Fund for constructing, acquiring, extending, improving, maintailaing, and operating capital improvements and facilities of the City and paying general operating expenses of the City. Tile sales tax, which began on February 1, 1983, is for an indefinite period. The one per cent sales tax is dedicated to the Street Improvement Special Revenue Fund for cortstructing, paving, and improving public streets in the City, including utilities relocation and incidental sewer and drainage work required. The sales tax, which began on January 1, 1995, is for a period of ten years and will expire on December 31, 2004. 
Property taxes For recreation (1.75 mills), public safety (.99 mills) and drainage (1.23 mills) were passed by the voters in 1994, levied in 1995 and will expire with the 2003 tax roll. For the Civic Center, 2.52 mills was passed by the voters in 1989, levied in 1989 and will expire in 1998. 
For the Louisiana Purchase Gardens and Zoo, 2.52 mills was passed by the voters in 1989, levied in 1989, and will expire in 1998. 
For the police department, 1.52 mills was passed by the voters in 1989, levied in 1989, and will expire in 1998. For the fire department, 1.52 mills was passed by the voters in 1989, levied in 1989 and will expire in 1998. 
For capital improvements, 3.27 mills was passed by the voters in 1989, levied in 1989, and will expire in 1998. 



CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana 
Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) hi. TOTAL COLUMNS ON COMBINED STATEMENTS 
Total colunms on the combined statements are captioned Totals - Memorandum Only to indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do no represent financial position, results of operalions or cash flows in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Neither is such data comparable to a consolidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made in tile aggregation of this data. 
FUND DEFICITS The following funds have deficits at April 3(1, 1997 
Debt Service Funds: 1974 Streets Brierfield Street Assessments Brierfield Sewer Assessments Street Assessments Urban Systems Assessment 1988 Street Overlay Phase I 1988 Street Overlay Phase II Capital Projects Funds: NI.U Softball Complex N. 18th Extension Operations Road/Construction Awmue Webster Street Drainage Pope/Westminster/Oliver Road Urban Systems 1992 Flood Control Applications Ashley/Grayling Lane Huntington Park Storm/Sewer Bernstine Park Drive Chase Manhattan Records River Oaks Flood Protection Special Revenue Funds: City Prosecuting Attorney 

$ 2,448 46,426 10,111 595,355 47,353 39,363 71,673 
5,476 103 75 74,758 14,851 119,327 58,154 7,078 4,172 93 22,577 37,715 
3,426 



CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 
2. FUND DEFICITS (Continued) Enterprise Funds: Municipal Airport Monroe Transit System Civic Center Louisiana Purchase Gardens and Zoo Exem'sion Boat Livestock Arena 

8,742,957 4,998,265 4,058,153 2,120,398 52,443 77,227 The deficits in the capital projects funds will be cleared by either Federal and state grants or funding from the General Fund. Deficits in the enterprise funds are caused by depreciation and/or transfers to the General Fund. The debt service funds will clear their deficits by either collection of assessments or funding from the General Fund. 
RECEIVABI,ES Accounts receivable of $4,599,558 at April 30, 1997, are comprised of the following 
General Special Revenue Debt Service Capital Projects Proprietary Fiduciary Tota 

Taxes - ad valorem Grants $ 112,088 0 0 0 27,788 282~5 _0_7_ 
$ 60,575 81,238 0 673,309 20,825 0 
$1,044,995 593,052 653,154 10,575 850,295 0 

Tota $ 1,217,658 674,290 838,405 683,884 902,022 283,299 
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CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 
4. CHANGES IN FIXED ASSETS The following s~hedu~e presents changes in ger~erai f'~xed assets for the year euded April 30, 1997: 
Land and buildings Improvements Other than Buildings Furniture and vehicles School land & buildings Construction in progress Total 

Balance April 30 1996 .A_ diustments Additions $19,513,633 $ 2,279,233 
164,492 14,273,566 1,895,399 1,177,348 $37,024,438 

Balance April 30, Deletions 1997 $ ( 75,870) $21,716,996 
164,492 2,077,600 (2,581,117) 14,791,820 

2,699,405 $ 7,056,238 (1.,177,348) ~3.,834,335l 
895.399 2,699,405 $41,268,112 The adjustment to furniture and vehicles totaling $1,021,771 represents the net effect of transfers to and from departments thai are recorded in the Enterprise Funds. The Enterprise Funds capitalize interest on funds used during construction on projects financed with bond funds. The amount capitalized represents the net cost of borrowed money for the period of construction and consists of bond interest paid less interest earned on temporary inw,'stments designated for construction. Amortization of capitalized interest totaled $8,979 for the year ended April 30, 1997. The Louisiana Purchase Gardens and Zoo enterprise fund carries its investment in animals in the fixed asset section of the balance sheet. The cost shown on the balance sheet relates only to animals that were purchased. Animals born in the zoo have no cost associated with them. Also, the zoo has a number of bird specimens which are covered by the Migratory Bird Treaty (MBT). Certain birds under the MBT and have no cost associated with them because they may not be bought and sold. The following schedulc reflects the number of specimens on hand ~,t April 30, 1997, the associated cost, and the corresponding market value. 

Specimens havin~g a cost basis Specimens havin~, no cost basis Specimens covered by Migratory Bird Treaty Total 
28 

Number 249 280 11 540 
Cost $ 75,422 NONE NONE [.$ 75,422 
Market Value $ 75,422 110,426 NONE $ 1 85,848 
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CITY 012 MONROE Monroe, Louisiana Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 
RESTRICTED ASSETS AND RELATED RESERVES 
Under terms of the 1995 sewer refunding bonds, the City Sewer Department is required to establish a sinking fund as more fully described in Note 10. 
ELECTRICAL SYSTEM OPERATING AGREEMENT On July 9, 1977, the voters of the City of Monroe authorized an operating agreement between the City of Monroe and Louisiana Power & Light (LP&L) for the operation by LP&L of the City's electric system. The agreement provided that LP&L would pay to the City a percentage of total revenue collected from the sale of electric service to residential and commercial customers within the City, such payments not to be less than $700,000 annually. The aforementioned base increased by one per cent of sales of electric services to residential and commercial customers in excess of $10,000,000 in a calendar year. Revenues under this agreement totalled $1,414,288 for the year ended April 30, 1997. 
PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS City of Monroe Sponsored Pension Plans Prior to September 1, 1983, the Bus l)epar/~ment employees that participated in the Bus Drivers' Pension and Relief Fund contributed $25 per month. The City funds any annual operating deficits of the fund. Effective September 1, 1983, the members of the Bus Drivers' Pension and Relief Fund agreed to merge with the Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (MERS). Since the merger, the Bus Department administrative employees contribute 9.25% of their salary and the City contributes 7.25 %. The City also reimburses 4% of the bus operators' contributions. For the year ended April 30, 1997, the City contributed $30,400 to the Bus Drivers' Pension and Relief Fund. The Electrical Workers' Pension and Relief Fund was established for employees of the former Utilities Commission of the City of Monroe. The plan covers only those employees of the Electrical Department of the Monroe Utilities Commission who retired prior to June 30, 1973. All active employees on that date and those hired subsequently are covered under the MERS. The City made no contributions to the Electrical Workers' Pension and Relief Fund for the year ended April 30, 1997. 



CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 
PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued) The Monroe Policemen's Pension and Relief Fund covers those employees who were members of' the fired at September 1, 1983, and who retire prior to the age of 50. Upon reaching their 50th birthday, they will no longer receive benefits under tire Monroe Policemen's Pension and Relief Fund, but will begin receiving benefits under the Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (MPERS). The City corrtributed $40,000 to the Monroe Policemen's Pension and Relief Fund for the year ended April 30, 1997. Data concerning the actuarial status of the Policemen's, Bus Drivers', and Electrical Workers' Pension and Relief Funds is nol available. The City of Monroe has never required the services of an actuary for" the policemen's and bus drivers retirement plans nor felt the need to determine the actuarial liability of the plans because state law requires that the plans be funded at minimum reserve requirements rather than actuarially compuled reserve based on filture benefits payable. The three fimds had net assets at April 30, 1997, as follows; Policemen's, $104,187; Bus Drivers', $50,542; and Electrical Workers', $497,039. 
State Sponsored Plans Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (MERS) Substantially all city employees, except firemen and policemen, are members of the MERS, a multiple-employer, cost-sharing, public employee retirement system (PERS), controlled and administered by a separate board of trustees. The MERS is composed of two distinct plans, Plan A and Plan t3, with separate assets and benefit provisions. All nrembers participate in Plan A. All permanent employees working at least 35 hours per week and elected city officials arc eligible to participate in the system. Under tire plan provisions, a nrember who retires at or after age 60 with at least 10 years of creditable service, at or after' age 55 with 25 years of creditable service, or at any age with at least 30 years of creditable service is entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, equal to 3% of the member's final conrpensation multiplied by his years of creditable service. 
However, for" those members of tire supplemental plan only prior to October 1, 1978, tire benefit is eqtml to 1% of final compensation plus $2 per month for each year of supplemental-plan-only service earned prior to October 1, 1978, plus 3% of final compensation for each year of service credited after October 1, 1979. 



CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana 
Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 

PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued) State Sponsored Plans (Continued) 
Funding Policy. Contributions to lhe system include one-fourth of one per cent of thc taxes shown to be collectible by the tax rolls of the parish. These tax dollars are dividcd between Plan A and Plan B based proportionately on the salaries of members on which contributions were made for the previous fiscal year. State statute requires covered employees to contribute a percentage of their salaries to the system; however, the City is authorized by state statute to pay to the system from its own funds the employee contributions. As provided by Louisiana Revised Statute 11:103, the employcr contributions are determined by actuarial valuation and are subject to change each year based on the results of the valuation for the prior fiscal year. The City's contributions 1o the MERS for the years ended April 30, 1995, 1996 and 1997 were $687,946; $793,405; and $899,117 respectively, equal to the statutorily required contributions for each year. 
The MERS issues an annual, publicly-available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the retirement system. The report may be obtained by writing the Municipal Employees' Retirement System, 6750 Van Gogh, Baton Rouge, LA 70806 or by calling (504) 925-4810. Firefighters' Retirement System (SFRS) Effective May 7, 1981, the members of the Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund agreed to merge with tbe SFRS, a multiple-employer, cost-sharing PERS. Effective June 1, 1986, the retirees and dependents receiving benefits under the City plan as of May 7, 1981, were transferred to the SFRS. As a result of these mergers, the City of Monroe was indebted 1o the SFRS for $4,419,915 at April 30, 1997. During fiscal 1997, the City paid principal and interest payments of $454,958 and $94,326 on the debt for the 1981 merger and 1986 transfer, respectively. Tile liabilities have 6.6% and 7% interest rates, respectively. The plan covers substantially all members of the City's Fire Department. All new employees of the department must join this plan with the exception of employees performing duties unrelated to fire fighting. Employees with 20 years or more of service wbo have attained age 50 or employees with 12 years of service who have attained age 55 or 25 years of service at any age are entitled to annual pension benefits equal to 3- 1/3% of their average final compensation based on the 36 consecutive months of highest pay multiplied by their total years of service, not to exceed 100%o. If employees terminatc before rendering 12 years of service, they fbrfcit the right to receive the portion of lbeir 
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CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana 
Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 

PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued) accumulated plan benefits attributable to employer contributions. Employees who terminate wilh at least the amount of creditable service stated above and do not withdraw their employee contributions may retire at the ages specified above and receive the benefit accrued to their date of termination. The system also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established by state statute. 
Funding Policy. State statute requires covered employees to contribute a percentage of their salaries to the system; however, tile City is authorized by state statute to pay to the system from its own funds the employee contributions. As provided by Louisiana Revised Statute 11:103, the employer contributions are determined by actuarial valuation and arc subject to change each year based on the results of the valuation for the prior fiscal year. The City's contributions to the SFRS for tile years ended April 30, 1995, 1996 and 1997 were $320,800; $380,239; and $416,433, respectively, equal to the required conlributions for each year. 
The SFRS issues an annual, publicly-available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the retirement system. The report may be obtained by writing the Firefighiers' Retirement System, 2051 Silverside Drive, Suite 10, Baton Rouge, LA 70808-413(; or by calling (504) 925-4060. Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (MPERS) Effective September 1, 1983, the members of the City's Policemen's Pension and Relicf Fund agreed to merge with the MPERS, a multiple-employer, cost-sharing PERS. As a result of this merger, the City of Monroe was indebted to the MPERS for $3,693,851 at April 30, 1!)97. This amount is being paid in quarterly installments at 6.6% interest. The City paid principal and interest payments of $373,768 during fiscal 1997. All full-time police officers engaged in law enforcement and earning at least $375 pcr month excluding state supplemental pay, lhe elected chief of police whose salary is at least $100 per month, and secretaries to the chief of police are eligible to participate in the system. Members who retire at or after age 55 with 12 years of creditable service, at or after age 50 with 20 years of creditable service, or at any age with 25 years of creditable service are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, equal to 3-1/3% of the member's average final compensation multiplied by his years of creditable service, not to exceed 100 per cent of his average final compensation. The system also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits arc established by state statute. 
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CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 
PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued) 
Funding Policy. State statutes require covered employees to contribute a percentage of their salaries to the system. As provided by Louisiana Revised Statute 11:103, the employer contributions are determined by actuarial valuation and are subject to change each year based on the results of the valuation for the prior fiscal year. The City's contributions to the MPERS for the years ended April 30, 1995, 1996 and 1997 werc $266,100; $346,530; and $375,368, respectively, equal to the statutorily required contributions for each year. 
The MPERS issues an annual, publicly-available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the retirement system. The reporl may be oblained by writing the Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System, 8401 United Plaza Blvd., Room 305, Baton Rouge, LA 70808 or by calling (504) 929-7411. 8. POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTtl CARE BENEFITS During the year ended April 30, 1997, the City incurred a total of approximately $4,391,832 in expenses in connection with providing benefits to a total of 1,292 participants. The cost is broken down as follows: 
Active Employee Retired Employee COBRA TOTAL 

Government Fund $ 3,625,422 467,935 37,503 $ 4,130,860 
Utility Fund $ 185,248 75,724 0 
Total $ 3,810,670 543,659 37,503 $ 4,391,832 Of the total amount, approximately $318,228 was for benefits under the plan paid for by the 173 retirees and 17 COBRA participants. The amounts are broken down as follows: General Fund $277,339 and Utility Fund $40,889. 

OPERATING LEASES At April 30, 1997, the City was obligaled under operating lease agreements covering computer equipment and various other items of equipment. The original lives of the leases range up to five years with options to renew some leases for one to five years. Thc City made lease payments of approximately $440,000 during the year ended April 30, 1997. The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under operating leases as of April 30, 1997: 



 
CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana 

Notes I'o The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 
9. OPERATING LEASES (Co1~tinued) 
YearEnded April 30 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002-2003 Tot~ 

Minimum Lease P~wments $ 433,940 355,414 378,102 57,043 __ 7,214 $1,231,7!~ 
10. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS The following is a summary of long-term obligation transactions of the City of Monroc for the year ended April 30, 1997: General Long-Term Obligatiolls Account Enterprise Group Funds Total Longqerm obligations, May 1, 1996 $ 17,463,663 $ 5,441,554 $ 22,905,217 Additions 15,722,086 326,058 16,048,144 Retirement ( 2,548,463) L(1,2!4,383_) (3,762,846) Long-lerm obligations, April 30, 1997 ~ 30,637,286 5; 4 5.53 229 Long-term obligations outstanding at April 30, 1997, are comprised of the following 
General L o~,~-Tgerm O bligati Account Grpu~12 :l~_leral ob_l~ions bonds Public improvements: Recreation Airport Sewers City Court and Jail Total general obligation bonds 

Maturity lnteresl Balance Issue Date_ Rate Outstanding 
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974 974 974 990 
1/ 1/ 1/ 3/ 
/00 6.00 /00 6.00 /00 6.00 /00 6.65 .- 10.00 

$ 3,000 3,000 15,000 1,630,000 
1,651,000 



CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana 
Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 

10. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 
Tax Increment Bonds Tower Drive 1-20 Development Total tax increment bonds 
Certificates of indebtedness 

1997 1997 3/1/12 3/1/11 5.21 5.63 6,000,000 4,950,000 10,950,000 
Central Warehouse and Shop 1996 12/1/05 5.40 - 6.2 3,000,000 Selman Field Golf Course 1996 12/1/05 4.55 500,000 Total Certificates of Indebtedness 3,500,000 Soecial assessments certificates New street certificates: 1988 Phase 1 1988 Phase II Urban Systems Ordinance 9432 Total new street certificates Sewerage certificates: Ituntington Park Total sewerage certificates Total special assessment certificates 
Other Claims and Judgments Payable State Firefighters' Retirement System Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System Accrued vacation and sick pay Total other 

1990 1991 1994 3/1/00 7.50 - 9.00 3/1/00 8.00 3/1/04 6.20-- 10.00 70,879 55,816 95,102 221,797 1995 9/1/04 7.00 - 8.00 482 928 482,928 

1981 1/15/11 1983 9/1/01 None None Total general long-term obligations account group EnteFprise Funds 
General obligation bonds Civic (:?enter 
Revemle bonds- Sewer Refunding 
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6.62 6.66 None 

704,725 
4,083,200 
4,419,915 3,693,851 1,634,595 13,831,561 $30,637,286 

1991 3/1/10 6.70 $ 635,000 
1995 6/1/06 4.30 - 5.40 2,525,000 



CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 
10. 1.ONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 
Other Department of Environmental Quality Accrued vacation and sick pay 
Total enterprise funds 
Long-Term _O_bli~,~ation General oMigation bonds Rccreation Airport Sewer City court and jail Civic center 
Tax increment bonds Tower Drive 1-20 Development 

Nolle None None None None None 718,255 674.974 

1974 Parks & Recreatiou Debt Service Fund 1974 Airport Debt Service Fund 1974 Sanitary Sewer Debt Service Fund City Court and Jail Improvemenls Debt Service Fund Civic Center Enterprise Fund 
Tower [)rive Debt Service Fund 1-20 Debt Service Fund 

Certificates of indebtedness - Selman Field Golf Course General Fund Central Warehouse and Shop General Fund Special assessments certificates Street Construction: 1988 Phase I 1988 Phase II Urban Systems Ordinance !)432 Sewer certificates: Huntington Park 

1988 Street Overlay Phase I Debt Service Fund 1988 Street Overlay Phase lI Debt Service Fund 
Special Assessment - Urban Systems Ordinance 9432 Debt Serwice Fund Special Assessment - Huntington Park Debt Service Fund Revenue bonds -. Sewer Refunding Sewer Department Enterprise Fund 
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CHY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 
10. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued) The amount recorded as claims and judgments payable in the General Long Tenll Obligations Account Group is the City's liability for settled claims that are not expected to be paid with available resources at year-end. Expenditures for claims and judgments payable are recognized in the General Fund when paid. Only those expenditures which are included in the City's legally adopted budget will be paid. As discussed in Note 7 above, the Cily is indebted to the State, Firefighters Retirement System and the Municipal Police Enlt~loyees' Retirement System as a result of mergers and/or transfers with those systems. Principal and interest payments on that indebtedness are recorded as pension expenditures of the General Fund. Further, as a result of a Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) decree, the City recorded a liability of $1,150,000 in the Sewer Enterprise Fund as an estimate of the cost required to bring the City into compliance with the effluent standards of DEQ in 1996. Approximately $430,000 was charged against the liability in fiscal 1997, and the balance is expected to be expended in fiscal years 1998 and 1999, respectively. The debt service: requirements to amortize all bonds, certificates and other long-term obligations (other than accrued vacation and sick pay, claims aud judgements, mad the DEQ liability discussed above) outstanding at April 30, 1997, including interest payments of $12,600,405 are as follows: General Obligation Bonds and Certificates Year Ended April 3~ 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003-2007 2008-2012 2013-2017 Total 

of lndebledness $ 1,255,483 1,258,114 636,998 631,500 631,115 2,703,610 574,740 0 ~7,691,560 

Revenue Bonds $ 326,288 321,793 326,566 320,645 324,126 1,603,078 0 0 $3,222,496 

Assessments $ 167,774 158,567 149,794 98,916 93,563 236,151 0 0 S__ 9__04,765 

Increment $ 1,117,009 1,094,508 1,095,846 1,095,557 1,103,642 5,543,239 5,104,944 0 $ 16,154,74~  

Other $ 923,772 923.052 923,053 923,114 828,724 4,143,612 3,574,210 -- 466,793 $.~12,706,330 

Total $3,790,326 3,756,034 3,132,257 3,069,732 2,981,170 14,229,690 9,253,894 466,793 $40,679,896 
General obligation bonds are direct obligations and are secured by the full faith and credit of the City. These bonds generally mature over a 20 year life. Revenue bonds are secured by pledged income derived from the assets acquired or constructed with bond funds. Special assessment certificates and certificates of indebtedness are secured by a pledge of the full faith and credit of the City. The general credit of the City is obligated only to the extent that liens foreclosed against properties involved in the special assessments district are insufficient to retire outstanding bonds. The Tax Increment bonds are secured sole.,] from the incremental tax revenues from the respective economic development districts. Delinquent special assessments at April 3(I, 1997, are $116,077. 38 



CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 
10. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued) Sewer Revenue Bonds During fiscal 1987, the City issued revenue bonds totaling $4,115,000 to be used for the construction of an aerated equalization basin and the installation of mixed media filters to supplement or replace the current chemical treatment at the City's Water Pollution Control Center. The Series 1986A Sewer Revenue Bonds were issued at a premium of $14,358. On August g, 1995, the City issued $2,695,000 in Revenue Bonds of the Sewer Department with an average interest rate of 4.85 per cent to advance refund $2,960,000 of outstanding Series 1986A bonds. The net proceeds of $2,641,555 (after payment of $56,035 in underwriting fees and other issuance costs and accrued interest of $2,590) plus an additional $492,320 in cash was used to purchase U.S. government securities. The underwriting fees, issuance costs and bond premium ($110,000) are being mnortized using the straight line method over the 10 year life of the bonds. 
The outstanding balance of the refunding bonds is presented net of the related bond premium; the deferred issuance costs are presented as other assets in the Sewer Enterprise Fund. 
Those securities purchased were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the 1986A Series bonds. As a result, the 1986A Series bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for those bonds was removed from the balance sheet of the Sewer Department Enter-prise Fund. The outstanding balance of the defeased 1986A Series bonds at April 30, 1997 is $2,780,000. Certain provisions of the bond indenture of the 1995 Sewer Refunding Bonds require the City to establish a sinking fund. The City is required to deposit in the sinking fund at least three days in advance of the date on which each payment of principal and/or interest falls due on the outstanding parity obligations (Certificates of Indebtedness, Series 1994, dated December 20, 1994), funds fully sufficient to promptly pay the maturing principal and/or interest falling due on such day. Interest payments are due every six months and principal payments on the bonds are due once a year. The City is required to deposit in the sinking fund monthly in advance on or before the twentieth day, one-sixth of thc interest due and one-twelfth of the principal due on the bonds on the next payment date. The fiscal agent bank shall make available funds from the sinking fund to the paying agent at least one day in advance to the date on which payment of the principal and interest on the bonds and the Outstanding Parity Obligations falls due. The fund provided shall be sufficient to pay promptly the principal and interest falling due on such date. The City was in compliance with these restrictive covenants of the 1995 Sewer Refunding Bond indenture at April 30, 1997. 
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CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana 
Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 

11. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES Individual fund balances due from/to other funds at April 30, 1997, are as follows 
General Fund General Fund (Advance) Special revenue funds: Connnunity Development City Prosecuting Attorney La Incident Based Reporting Folklife Program Street Improvement Debt service funds: Brierfield Sewer Assessment Brierfield Street Assessment Sewer Assessments Street Assessments Urban Systems Assessment 1988 Street Overlay Phase I 1988 Street Overlay Phase I1 Special Assessment - Huntington Park Tower Drive Urban Systems Ordinance Capital proiect funds: UMTA North 18th Street Right-of-Way 1989 Stree, l Overlay Phase I1 Urban Systems 1992 Forsythe Park Huntington Park Storm Sewer Airport Industrial Park North 19tb Street NLU Softball Complex Kansas Lane Improvements Temple-. ]nland HAWES Street AlP - 15 Demolition of Property Tower Drive 

Due From Other Funds Due To Other Funds 3,581,547 $ 2,297,882 4,161,!)38 2,088,352 
50,200 

140,505 16,919 
59,245 128,350 17,589 
55,583 
10,000 42,881 200,000 45,490 15,554 5,612 

25,725 159 418 34,853 246,078 10,111 46,426 4,123 647,313 69,226 53,668 76,223 161,415 
147,395 156,994 17,589 119,327 55,583 4,172 565,545 87,351 48,357 45,490 15,554 19,852 3,000 140,505 



CITY OI7 MONROE Monroe, Louisiana Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 
11. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES (Continued) 
North 18th Street Extension Central Shop and Warehouse River Oaks Flood Control Chase Manhattan Records Facility Pope/Weslminister/Oliver Road North Spencer Outfall Calypso Street Extension AlP - 8 Downtown Redevelopment Lamy Lane Infrastructure AIP- 16 AIP- 14 Selrnan Field Golf Course 1-20 C'orridor Improvements DeSiard Plaza Extension AlP - 09, 10, 11, 12, 13 Flood Control Application Forsythe/Chauvin Flood Beloit/Spencer Storm Drainage Tri-District Boys Club Recreation Development Chase Manhattan Service Road Operations Road & Construction Ave Webster Street Drainage Ashley/Grayling Lane Riw,~r Oaks Flood Protection Black/Clawson Bemstine Park En'terprise flmds: Municipal Airport Municipal Airport (Advance) Monroe Transit System (Advance) Civic Center Civic Center (Advance) Louisiana Purchase Gardens and Zoo 

Due From Other Funds Due To Other Funds 25,000 18,794 433,179 200,000 
165,000 200,000 23 13,(199 39,739 100,000 17,160 3 50,000 14,760 
197,660 128,226 
327,964 

598,251 
58 

22,577 14,922 100,503 13,463 23 13,099 39,739 47,140 5,596 
7,161 4,145 58,154 
69,004 1,463 180 71,325 75 74,758 7,078 31,955 103 93 
12,291 51,977 16,840 27,442 2,826 



CITY OF' MONROE Monroe, I~uisiana 
Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 

11. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES (Continued) 
Trust and Agency: Cash Bond Louisiana Purchase Gardens and Zoo (Advance) Twin City Queen Utility and Sewer Department Utility and Sewer (Advance) Internal Service Fund - Employee Group Insurance Internal Service Fund - Employee Group Insurance (Advance) Total 

12. INTERFUND TIL4.NSFERS 

Due Frorn Other Funds 
1,690 992,768 2,920 2,432,0.12 

Due To Other Funds 
150 22,817 
3,702,724 2,843,858 

$14,470,925 $14,470,925 
The following opcrating transfers were made between the various fimds of the City during the year ended April 30, 1997: 

General Fund Fire Department Insurance Folklife Festival Street hnprovement Fund 1-20 Corridor Debt Service Tower' Drive Debt Service 1964 City Hall and Jail 1-20 Corridor Improvements AIP #14 Tower Drive Capital Project Airport lnd. Park Capital Project Rochelle Gravity Outfall Infrastructure 
42 

Operating Transfers In $ (405,902) (115,200) (10,479,124) (161,664) (586,184) (11) (3) 
(115,693) (80,000) (100,000) 

Operating Transfers Out $ 14,539,576 19 

161,663 
586,184 



CITY OF' MONROE Monroe, Ixmisiana 
Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 

12. 1NTERFUND TRANSFERS (Conlinued) 
UMTA Capital Nth 18th Extension North Spencer Outfall River Oaks Flood Control Forsythe Chauvin Flood Control Kansas Lane Selman Field Calypso Extension P~peiWesm~inister/Bel~it/Spencer Chase Manhattan Service Road Enterprise Funds: Monroe Regional Airport Monroe Transit System Monroe Civic Center La. Purchase Gardens & Zoo Twin City Queen Livestock Arena Water & Sewer Fund 

Operating Transfers In (57,813) (25,000) (165,000) (200,000) (197,660) (200,000) (50,000) (2oo,ooo) (loo,ooo) (327,964) 
(835,176) (883,843) (440,464) (64,650) (16,969) (716).. -$ (15,809,036).. 

Operating Transfers Out 

521,343 

251 $ 15,809,036 In addition, the City's General Fund made capital contributions to certain Enterprisc Funds during the year ended April 30, 1997 for the purpose of acquiring fixed assets: 
Louisiana Purchase Gardens and Zoo Fund Municipal Airport Fund Total current contributed capital 

13. SEGMENT INFORMATION 
$ 226,835 __ 1,739 $ 228,574 

The City's enterprise flmds provide various services to the public. As provided by GASB Codification 2500.107, the following segment information is presented for the City's enterprise funds. 
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CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 
14. LITIGATION AND CLAIMS 
Various lawsuits are pending against the City of Monroe. Except as noted below, attorneys of the City are of the opinion that any judgment rendered in favor of tile plaintiff will not materially affect the financial position of the City at April 30, 1997. The City is involved in two suits involving jail conditions. The claims are for $2,000,000. Estimated exposure, if any, is unknown. The City is involved in a suit for false arrest. The claim amount is $395,000. Estimated exposure, if any, is unknown. The City is involved in a suit regarding a contract with a local manufacturing concern. The claim is for an amount in excess of $130,000. The amount of liability, if any, cannol be determined at this time. The City is involved in certain civil rights suits with claims in excess of $400,000. The amount of liability, if any, cannot be deternlined. 
The City, through the Police Department, is being sued by K-9 unit officers for unpaid overtime in the amount of approximately $90,000. The outcome of this matter is not known at this time. 
In addition, the City is a party to various suits involving wrongful death, use of excessive force by poliee officers, accidents involving City vehicles and/or property and workman's compensation. The City is unable to make an estimate of the possible liability, if any, of these matters at the current time. 

15. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS 
The City of Monroe offers its employees deferred compensation plans created in accordance with Internal Revenue (;ode Section 457. The plans, available to all employees, permit them to defer a portion of their salaries until future years. The City does not make any contributions to the plans. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement or unforeseeable emergency. Deferred compensation is available to employees' beneficiaries in case of death. 
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CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 
15. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued) All amounts of compensation deferred under the plans, all property and rights purchased with those amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts, property or rights arc (until paid or made available to the employee or other beneficiary) solely the properly and rights of the City, (without being restricted to the provision of benefits under the plans), subject only to the claims of the City's general creditors. Participants' rights under the plan are equal to those of general creditors of the City in an amount equal to the fail" market valne of the deferred accoum for each participant. 
In management's opinion, the City has no liability for losses under the plans. However, the City does have the duty of due care that would be required of an ordinary prudent investor. The City of Monroe believes it is unlikely that it will use the assets to satisfy the claims of general creditors in the future. 
All assets of the plan are held by an independent administrator. It is appropriate to include this entity in the City's financial statements since the City has title to these assets. The Deferred Compensation Fund is reported as an Agency Fund and its assets are presented at market value at March 31, 1997, which was the latest valuation date. 

16. CHANGES IN REPORTING Adjustments for Prior Period Errors In the financial statements for the year ended April 30, 1996, an error was made affecting ending balances of the General Long Term Obligations Account Group. The effect of this error was to understate outstanding Certificates of Indebtedness by $500,000. Tile correction resulted in a restatement of the beginning balances for the General Long Term Obligations Account Group as follows: 
Beginning balance as previously reported Prior period error - Outstanding debt omitted Beginning balance - as restated 
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$ 16,963,663 500,900 



CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana 
Notes To 1"he Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 

16. CHANGES IN REPORTING (Continued) Adjustments for Prior Period Errors (Continued) In addition, the Street and Sewer Agency Fund was erroneously classified as a Debt Service Fund in the April 30, 1996 general purpose financial statements. The fund is properly classified as an agency fund at April 30, 1997 and beginning fund balance in the debt service funds has been decreased by approximately $132,000. 
17. INDIVIDUAL COMPONENT UNIT DISCLOSURES The following schedules present condensed financial statements for each of the discretely presented component units. Balance Sheets 
Assets: Current assets Land, buildings and equipment Amount to be provided Total Assets 
Liabilities: Current liahilities Long-term liabilities Total liabilities Equity: lnw,~stment in fixed assets Fund balances Total equity Total Liabilities and Equity 
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MONROE MONROE CITY CITY MARSHAL COURT TOTAL $ 23,702 279,901 _47 321 $ 690,856 240,092 0 $ 714,558 519,993 47,321 350,924 ~ 930,948 $1,281,872 
13,151 $ 500,255 47.321 0 60,472 279,901 __ 10 551 290.452 
500 255 240,092 190 601 439~693 

$ 513,406 47,321 560,727 519,993 201,152 721,145 



CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana 
Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 

17. INDIVII)UAL COMPONENT UNIT DISCLOSURES (Continued) Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 
Revenues Expenditures: Current - judicial Capital outlay Debt service Total expenditures Excess (deficiencies) of revenues over expenditures Equity - beginning Equity - ending 

MONROE CITY MARSHAL $ 782,495 803,535 0 ____25 007 828,542 (46,047) __56 598 

MONROE CI TY COURT TOTAL $ 828,080 $1,610,575 766,604 20,814 27 814,609 13,471 177j30 

1,570,139 20,814 52,198 1,643,151 (32,756) 233,728 L~19,551 _$ 1906~0~01 $ 201,15g Complete financial statements of the component units can be obtained from their respective offices or the Ouachita Parish Clerk of Court. 
18. ON-BEItALF PAYMENTS Certain City employees in the City Mm:shal's office, the Monroe Police Department and the Monroe Fire Department receive supplemental pay from the state of Louisiana. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 24 "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Grants and Other Financial Assistance", the City tins recorded revenues and expenditures for these payments in the General Fund. Revenues under this arrangement totaled $1,199,232 and the related expenditures are as follows: 
Marshal/Deputy Marshal Monroe Police Department Monroe Fire Department 
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$ 18,720 573,576 606,936 



CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 
19. RISK FINANCING ACTIVITIES The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. There were no major changes in insurance coverage for the year ended April 30, 1997. Certain risks of loss, such as surety bonding, transit and excursion boat liability and indenmity, and activities relating to the operations of Chennault Park, Selman Field Golf Course, the Monroe Civic Center, Louisiana Purchase Gardens and Zoo and Monroe Regional Airport are insured through purchase of commercial insurance with deductibles from $0 to $5,000 and coverage limits from $1,000 (surety bonds) to $34,600,000 (buildings and contents). Other risks of loss, including worker's compensation, fleet comprehensive and liability, long-tema disability and comprehensive general liability, are entirely self-insured. All of the foregoing risk financing activities are accounted for in the governmental and proprietary fund types. For long-term liabilities that m'e not expected to be liquidated with expend~,ble available financial resources in the governmental funds, a liability has been recorded in the General Long-term Obligations account Group at estimated present value. Changes in this claims liability for the year ended April 30, 1997 are as follows: 
Balance, April 30, 1996 Current year claims and changes in estimates Claims paid Balance, April 30, 1997 

$ 3,736,173 902,925 __._(.fi~5,898 ) 
The City also maintains a medical self-insurance plan to account for the City's employee medical and dental health care liabilities with reinsurance in force for claims in excess of $50,000. Revenues are recognized from payroll deductions by employees and for the City's contribution to fund claims paid through the plan. At April 30, 1997, an actuarially determined liability of approximately $2,500,000 has been recorded which represents claims unpaid and an estimated amount for claims incurred but not reported. Changes in the claim liability for the year ended April 30, 1997 are as follows: 
Balance, April 30, 1996 Current year claims and changes in estimates Claims paid 
Balance, April 30, 1997 

$ 2,508,384 4,640,671 (4,640,1768) 
Effective September 1, 1997, the City has discontinued self-insurance for employee medical and dental claims and replaced lhe program with a managed health care plan. 
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CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana 
Notes To The Financial Statements As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 

20. UNCERTAINTIES The City has suffered continuing losses in its Enterprise Funds (both proprietary and internal service funds) which are being subsidized by the General Fund. Approximately $4,200,000 in advances are classified as long-term, with a related reservation of fund balance, in the General Fund. The General Fund has also run deficiencies of revenues over expendilures of approximately $600,000 in fiscal 1997 and 1996. The Employee Insurance Internal Service Fund has clairns incurred and estimated incurred but not reported liabilities totaling over $2,500,000 at April 30, 1997 which have not been funded. As noted above, the City has discontinued its self-insured employee medical and dental plan; it is estimaled that the additional out-of-pocket preminm cost to the City for the managed care plan will be in the range of $600-650,000 annually. Capital expenditure budgets for the General Fund for fiscal 1997-98 total $1,268,337, a reduction from fiscal 1997 actual of $2,366,445. Serious violations of environmental laws are alleged to exist, primarily in the Sewer plant. Estimates to correct these alleged deficiencies range as high as $35,000,000 (which would involve building a new sewerage treatment facility). Therc are also deficit fund balances in certain debt service funds totaling over $800,000. Finally, the General Fund has no unreserved/undesignated fund balance. 
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CITY OF MONROE Monroe, I.ouisiana SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES As of and For the Year Ended April 30, 1997 
GENERAL FUND 

To account for resources lraditionally associated with governments which are not required to be accounted for in another fund. 
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CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana 
GENERAL FUND BALANCE SHEET AS OF APRIL 30, 1997 AND 1996 

ASSETS Cash and cash equivalents Investments Accounts receivable Duc from other public bodies Duc from other funds Property taxes receivable Advances to other funds Inventory 
TOI"ALASSETS 
LIABILITIES AND FUNI) EQUITY Liabilities Accounts; Payable Accrucd payroll I)uc to other funds Deferred revenue Other liabilities Adwmces from other funds Total liabilities 
Fund Equity - fund balance: Reserved for inventory Reserved for advances to other funds Designated for capital improvement Unreserved - undesignated Total fund equity TOTAl. LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 
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1997 1996 $ 994,260 3,363 1,044,995 60,575 3,581,547 112,088 4,161,938 34,254 

$ 3,431,615 4,342 346,102 172,651 1,413,203 89,258 2,790,769 21,975 
$ 9,993,019 $ 8,269,915 

$ 955,760 236,516 2,297,846 112,088 106,265 2,088,352 
$ 187,582 523,725 2,432,652 89,258 0 0 5,796,827 3,233,217 

34,254 4,161,938 0 0 4,196,192 
21,975 2,790,769 1,039,829 1A84,125 5,036,698 $ 9,993,019 $ 8,269.915 



CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Loll| SI ~llfl~l GENERAL FUND SCIIEDULE OF REVENUF?,S, EXPENDITURES AND CIIANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - COUNCIL LEVEL OF CONTROL FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 1997 
REVENUES Property taxes Business lieel~ses 1 .iqnor lieens( s Beer tax "1 obacco lax I)irccl Federzl Grants Indilect Federal (Jlanls Slate Grants Video poker revenue 1974 F.ecreation mainlenancc lax (l 3/4 mill) 1974 Public s~ rely tax (J mill) 1974 Drainage mahllenance tax (1 1/4 mills) Interest and penalties on taxes Sewer pelnllh~ and inspections Plumbing permits and inspccliolls Electric permits and inspections Gas permils and inspections ]leating/air conditioning permits and inspections Building pern,ils Sales lax collections Sales lax collections Sales lax t'olnln ission Sales lax cOnllll igsio[i Sales lax toni nl ission 

1997 
BUDGET ACTUAl $ 

VARIANCE I~AVORABLE (UNFAVOI(AIILE) 1996 ACTUAl. 



CITY OF MONROE Monroe. Louisiana GENERAL FUND SCIIEI)ULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CllANGFS IN FUND BALANCE; - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - COUNCIL LEVFL OF CONTROL (CONTINUED) FOR TifF YEAR ENDED APRIl, 30. 1997 

I{EVENUES Mollie sign pernlhs Off-pren~ise ~ign permits Police iniscellaneous .%:~u n d ]~ertnils 1984 Stleet n~aintenailce tax (2 1/2 mills) Forfeited drug funds l!ntergy Dandlisc fees City court civil fees City courl stlIi0tts 1 quipment ft nd from court fines City courl fines l)Wl probation fhles Appealance ~nd su rrender fees Prisoner housing fees Community policing fees Secu lity service Program incoale - computers Conlributiout and donations City miscellaneous revenue CATV & olher franchise fees Capital improvement millage Police dei~artment mi0age Fire dcpartnlent millage "lk)t al ICVPIIII OR EXI~I':NI)II"UIIES I egislat ire division - council and stafi Executive division - chief executive and staff Administration division: I)ileclor o[ adulinistration (ieneral administration Mi~:ellaneou s administration I'ersonnel department I'urchasing department City eourl (:fly marshal Total ad ninist rative division legal divisiotl: (~ily atlorn,:y Assistanl city attoraey - civil Proseeu t h~t'. attorney Total legal di~ ision 

1997 
BUDGET ACTUAL 1.000 500 20.000 2.000 6,000 2,000 1.600,000 180.000 50.000 4.500 500,000 5.000 50,00(I 200.000 229.000 120.000 3.000 1.000 30.000 0 880,000 415.000 415.000 50,271.118 
,516,815 .785,971 541,604 143,292 81,196 620,431 636.315 

56,150 

43,13,1 190.220 235,260 27.714 185.225 238,455 

VARIANCE; FAVORABI,I~: (UNFAVOI~.AIILE 1996 ACTUAL 

7.124 208,544 
22.419 (152,|40) 15.249 36 (1.555) (35,953) 

63,489 176,014 205,945 



CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana GENERAL FUNI) SCIII,~.DULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CIIANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - COUNCIL LEVEL OF CONTROl. (CONTINUED) FOR Ti|E YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 1997 
EXPENIIITURE8 Director of Planning and Urban I)evetopmcnt (k)mmunity developnlent programs Planning and zoning Inspeclors ]!qual cII/pioylncnt opportunity Total planning and urban developtnenl division: Enginccring division: Civil cnginccring "1 raffic engineering '1 otal cnginccring division Police division: Police dcparlment Jail Total polqcc division Fire division - fire department Public works division: Director of public works Sanitation Maintcnarlce and construction Beautification Shop Slrccls I)itchit~g Cemeteries Tola] public "~~orks division Communily a/lairs division: Director of communily affairs Recreation department 8clmml Field Golf Course (Jol f 'Sou rs~ s Chcnnault ILccrcation (k~nlplcx Forsythe Park Municipal (;olf Course Swimnling fools Masur Muscum 'l oral columunily affairs division Debt Service: General inh rest cxpcnse Ccrlificalcs of indcbtcdnes~ (1aims and judgements Policc pcnsi:',n merger Firc dcpartraCnl pcnsion merger "lotal dcbt scrvicc (:apll al ]!xpcn 58urcs lotal cxpcnditurcs EXCESS 1)E REVENUES (1VER EXPI~:NlllTUIIES 

1997 
78,407 0 156,773 381.204 127.892 744.276 597,244 466,662 
7.080,060 831.018 

ACTUAl, 

543,000 456,137 999.137 7,919.681 832.346 
189.162 2,279,112 297,967 993,272 478,932 1.665.675 1,159,601 236d167 

7,618~29 

4.387,1 
52,420 519,375 555,898 413,818 549,344 2,090,855 3.634,782 41.327.890 

VARIANCE FAVORABLE (UNIFAVORAIII,E) 

30,410 54,244 10,525 64.769 (839.6211 (1.3281 (840.949) (636518) 1.359 (95.083) 17.201 (22,260) 47,526 31,680 138.978 (31,464) 87.937 

(206.093) 
(122~18) 752,329 (982,2971 

1996 A(~'UAI 46.978 44,487 136,744 335.694 124,324 
380,616 438.914 819,530 6.444.041 376,760 6.820.80 

33,077 345.562 0 373.768 549.284 .301.69 949,773 
12,744,784 Continued) 



CITY OF MOIqROE Monroe, Louisiana GENERAL FUND SCIIEDUI.E OF REVENUES, EXPENDYI'URES AND CIIANGES 1N FUND llAI.ANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - COUNCIl, I.EVEL OF CONTROl, (CONTINUED) FOR TilE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30. 1997 
BUI)GET ACTUAl. 

278,420 405.651 130,000 251 0 0 0 0 0 0 (165,000) (1oo,ooo) (2o0.00o) (80.000) (20o,000) (327,964) (lOO,O0o) o o (57.813) (5o~oo) o o (25,o0o) (303,551) (197.660) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (930,036) 0 (471,594) (39.450) (500) 91,5o5 o (200DO0) 0 (115,200) (9,7oo,oo~_ tlO,582~6=~. 

(165,ooo) (100,000) (200.000) (80.000) (200,000) (327,964) (100.000) 0 0 (57,813) (5o,ooo) o o (25,ooo) (440.464) (197,66o) o o o o o o o o (835A75) 0 (883,843) (64,650) (16,969) 0 0 (200.000) (716) (115.200) (10,479,12~_ ( 12.266.39~ 

VARIANCE FAVORABLE (UNFAVORtdH*E) 1.599 0 0 

(136,913) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 94.861 0 (412,249) (25.200) (16,469) (91,505) 0 O (716) 0 079,124) (1,684,233) 

1996 AC~I'UAI. 47.453 0 267,626 0 529.385 121,653 6,279 7,161 1.539 



CITY OF MONROE Monroe. Louisiana GENERAl. FUND SCIIEDUI.E OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CIlANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUI)GET AND ACTUAl. - COUNCIL LEVFL OF CONTROL (CONTINUED) FOR TIlE YEAR ENDEI) APRIl. 30. 1997 

EXCESS (DI~3,'ICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER HNANCING SOURCES OVER EXI'ENIIrI'URES AND OTIIEI1 FINANCING USES FUND BALANCE, beginning of year as originally I'~ported Correction o[ an error FUNI) BALANCE, beghmlng of year as restated NTERFUNI) EQUITY TRANSFERS FUNI) BAI.ANCE, END OF YEAR 

BUDGET ACTUAL 

5.036.698 0 5.036.698 0 5,036,698 (291,453) (228.574) 4.088.607 $ 4,196.192 $ 

VARIANCE FAVORAI|I,E (UNI"AVOI,t ABLE ) 1996 ACTUAl 
44.706 (596.4 
0 0 0 62.879 __~874.793) 



CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES As of and For the Year Ended April 30, 1997 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

To account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than expendable trusts or for major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditure for specified purposes. 
FIRE DEPARTMENT INSURANCE FUND The Fire Department Insurance Fund receives an annual share of insurance commissions from the state of Louisiana. The monies are dedicated for fire department maintenance and supplies. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND 
The Community Development fund accounts for Federal Community Development Block Grant Funds. 

URBAN DEVELOPMENT ACTION GRANT FUND The Urban Development Action Grant Fund accounts for Federal funds used to aid in construction of single family dwellings. 
RENTAL REHABILITATION FUND The Rental Rehabilitation Fund accounts for Federal funds used to bring rental units to minimum standards. WATER CERTIFICATION FUND The Water Certification Fund accounts for fees collected and expenditures incurred by the City's water department for conducting water cc, rtification seminars. JR. TENNIS FUND 
The Junior Tennis Fund accounts for donations by tennis pros teaching on Monroe City courts. The proceeds of this fund are used to pay entry fees for disadvantaged junior tennis players. 
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CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES As of and For the Year Ended April 30, 1997 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued) 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND The Economic I)evelopment Fund accounts for funds advanced from the Community Development Fund and is used to make temporary loans to community businesses that have difficulty obtaining other funding. 
LAW ENFORCEMENT BLOCK GRANT FUND The Law F, nforcement Block Grant Fund accounts for the proceeds of a grant from the Federal Government. 
EMERGENUY SHELTER FUND The F.mergency Shelter Fund accounts for Federal funding from the United States Department of Housing and Urban Developrnent passed through the Louisiana Office of Community Services to provide assistance to the homeless through subawards to two non-profit organizations that assist with rehabilitation, essential services and operations for homeless prevention. 
MARTIN LUTttER KING FUND The Marlin Luther King Fund accounts for private contributions used to sponsor an annua program to promote the memory of Dr. Martin Luther King. 
BICYCLE TRAIL FUND The Bicycle Trail Fund accounts for funds received from private contributions used to support bicycle trails throughout the city. Mf'D I,A W ENFORCEMENT TRAINING SYSTEMS FUND The MPD Law Enforcement Training Systems Fund (LETS) accounts for MPD training seminars which are offered to other agencies and MPD employees. Funding is provided by fees charges. 



CITY (}F MONROE Monroe, Louisiana SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES As of and For the Year Ended April 30, 1997 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued) 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT LOAN FUND The Community Development Block (}rant Loan Fund accounts for revolving loans made for substantial rehabilitation to owner-occupied dwellings. CDBG HOME PROGRAM FUND 
The Home Program Fund accounts for Federal funds to aid in rehabilitation and new construction of low-income family housing. 

CITY PROSECUTING A TTORNEY FUND The City Prosecuting Attorney Fund accounts for the prosecuting attorney's share of bond forfeitures from bonding companies and cash bond forfeitures. 
MPD INFORMANT FUND The MPD Inlk)rmant Fund accounts for payments to confidential informants. Funding is provided by transfers from the General Fund. 
MPD YOUTtl FUND The MPD Youth Fund accounts for various children's activities sponsored by the Monroe Police Depamnent. Funding is provided by donations. 
DARE PROGRAM FUND The DARE Program Fund accounts for a grant received from Louisiana Commission on Law Enforcement and Administration of Criminal Justice to provide for the salaries and supplies of Iwo officers who work in the Drug Abuse Resistance Education Program in the City. FOLKLIFE FESTIVAL FUND 
The Folklife Festival Fund accounts for funds received and disbursed in connection with the Louisiana Folklife Festival held in the Cily each year. 
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CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana 
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES As of and For tile Year Ended April 30, 1997 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued) 

STREET IMPROVEMENT FUND 
The Street Improvement Fund accounts for the collection of a one per cent sales tax to be used in the repair and reconstruction of tile streets of Monroe, Louisiana. This repair and replacement project is to take place over a ten year period beginning in 1995. MPD JAIL FUND The MPD Jail fund is used to account tot various programs within tile jail promoting rehabilitation activities. It is funded by dedicated fees from civil and criminal suits within the Monroe City Court. LOUISIANA INCIDENT BASED REPORTING FUND 
The Louisiana Incident Based Reporting Fund accounts for Federal funding from the United States Department of Justice passed through the Louisiana Commission on Law Enforcement to fund the Monroe Police Department's participation in the drug control and systems improvement program. 
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CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES As of and For the Year Ended April 30, 1997 
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

To account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal and interest. 
1964 CITY HALL, dAIL, COURT, AND AUDITORIUM FUND The 1964 City Hall, Jail, Court, and Auditorium Fund accounts for the accunmlation of resources necessary tor, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related cos~Is associated with the $6,250,000 bonds issued on August 1, 1993. Financing of the debt is from property tax revenues. 
1974 PARKS AND RECREATION FUND The 1974 Streets Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources necessary for, and tile payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs associated with the $290,000 bonds issued on January 1, 1974. Financing of this debt is from property tax revenues. 1974 AIRPORT FUND 
The 1974 Airport Fund accounts for tile accumulation of resources necessary for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs associated with tile $1,000,000 bonds issued on January 1, 1975. Financing of the debt is from property tax revenues. 

1974 SANITARY SEWER FUND The 1974 Sanita .ry Sewer Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources necessary for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs associated with the $3,160,000 bonds issued on January 1, 1975. Financing of the deb! is from property tax revenues. 
CITY COURT AND JAIL IMPROVEMENT FUND The City Court and Jail Improvement Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources necessary for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs associated with the $2,000,000 bonds issued on January 1, 1990. Financing of this debt is from property tax revenues. 



CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana 
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES As of and For the Year Ended April 30, 1997 
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS (Continued) 

BRIERFIELD SEWER ASSESSMENTS FUND The Brierfield Sewer Assessments Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources necessary for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs associated with the 5;52,413 bonds issued on January 1, 1987. Financing of this debt is through assessments on property owners who benefited from the sewer improvements. STREET ASSESSMENTS FUND 
Tile Street Assessments Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources necessary for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs associated with the $5,036,776 bonds issued from October 1, 1982 through May 1, 1987. Financing of this debt is through assessments on property owners who benefited from the street improvements. BRIERFIELD STREET ASSESSMENTS FUND 
The Brierfield Street Assessments Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources necessary for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs associated with the $383,715 bonds issued on January 1, 1987. Financing of this debt is through assessments of property owners who are benefited by the street improvements. 

URBAN SYSTEMS ASSESSMENTS FUND The Urhan Systems Assessments Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources necessary for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs associated with the $156,079 bonds issued on August 1, 1987. Financing of this debt is through assessments on properly owners who benefited from the street improvements. 1988 STREET OVERLAY PHASE I FUND 
The 1988 Street Overlay Phase I Fund accounts for the accunmlation of resources necessary for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs associated with the $236,263 bonds issued on January 1, 1990. Financing of this debt is through assessments of property owners who are benefited by the street improvements. 
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CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana 
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES As of and For the Year Ended April 30, 1997 
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS (Continued) 

SPEC1AL ASSESSMENTS - URBAN SYSTEMS ORDINANCE 9432 FUND The Special Assessment - Urban Systems Ordinance 9432 Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources, necessary for, and the payment of, general long.-term debt, interest and the related cost associated with the $136,860 Certificates of Indebtedness issued on August 1, 1995. Financing of this debt is through assessments on property owners who benefited from these sewer improvements. 
SPECTAL ASSESSMENT- HUNTINGTON PARK FUND The Special Assessment - Huntington Park Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources necessary for, and the payment of, general long-term debt, interest and the related cost associated with the $603,660 Certificates of Indebtedness issued on January 1, 1995. Financing of this debt is through assessments on propc.rty owners who benefited from these sewer improvements. 
TOWER DRIVL" FUND The Tower Drive Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources necessary for, and the payment of, general long--term debt principal, interest, and related cost associated with $6,000,000 bonds issued in 1997. financing of this debt is through incremental sales taxes returned by the State of Louisiana resulting the implementation of an incremental sales tax district. 1-20 CORRIDOR FUND 
The 1-20 Con'idot Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources necessary for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related cost associated with $4,950,000 bonds issued in 1997. Financing of this debt is through incremental sales taxes returned by the State of Louisiana resulting the implementation of an incremental sales tax district. 
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1964 CITY IIALL, JAil,, COURT AND AUI)ITORIUM 1974 I'ARKS ANI) RECREATION 1974 STREETS 1974 AIRPORT 1974 SANITARY SEWER CITY COURT AND JAil, IMPROVEMI,;NTS BRIERHEI,I) SEWER ASSESSMENT STREET ASSESSMENTS BRIERI,'IEI,I) STREET ASSESSMENT URIIAN SYSTEMS ASSESSMENT 1988 STREET OVERI,AY - PIIASE I 1988 STREET OVERLAY - PIIASE 11 URIIAN SYSTEMS OR1)INANCE 9432 IUNTINGTON PARK SEWER ASSESSMENTS STREET AND SEWER ASSESSMENT TOWER DRIVE 1-20 CORRII)OI~ 

CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana DEBT SERVICE FUNDS COMBINING BALANCI?, SIIEET AS OF APRIL 30. 1997 
Casb 

129,804 400,528 

ASSETS Certificates of Deposit 0 $ 0 o 0 0 0 0 90 0 0 o 0 o o 0 o 0 

Assessments, Taxes and l)ue from Other Receivables Other Funds 0 $ 0 0 0 0 0 (I 0 0 0 o 0 16,919 o 0 140,505 0 

Iolal 
(1 $.~95 ] .(,75 d ,681 ~ 2.~90 I,I ,161 0 ?4,858 0 3',1.321 
2,3,S99 S't776 
0 27~,. 3(19 

TOTAI.S APRIl. 30, 1997 $ 1,898,2!)6 .$ 90 $ 838,405 $ 157,424 $ 2,x<~l 215 "10TALS AI>RII. 30, 1996 $ 859.060 $ 



LIABILITIES Deferred Revetllle Due to Other Funds 

161.415 

Liabilities 

648,829 $ 1,068,505 $ 1,717,334 $ 936,332 $ 1,688,280 

Fund Balance (Deficit) Reserved for Debt Service 0 $ 7,595 (2,448) 4,681 52,390 94.629 (lO, Hl) (595,355) (46,426) 

Total Liabilities and Fund Equity 

508,688 l,176,881 $ 2,894,215 1.309.626 



964 C.l'l~" IIALI,, JAil,, COURT AND AUIIITORIUM 

CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 1997 

1974 PARK S ANII RECREATION 974 STREETS 1974 AIRI)ORT 1974 SANITARY SEWER CITY COURI AND JAil~ IMPROVFMENTS BRIERHELI) SEWER ASSESSMENT STREETASSESSMENTS I(RIERFIELI) STREET ASSESSMENT URBAN SYSTEMS ASSESSMENT 1988 S'I'REE'I' OVERLAY - PIIASE I 1988 STREET OVERI,AY - PIIASE II URBAN SYSTEM S ORDINANCE 9432 IUNTING1'ON PARK SEWER ASSESSMENTS STREET AND SEWER ASSESSMENT TOWER DRIVE 
I'OTA1 ,S APRIL 30. 1997 TOTA( .S API~.IL 30. 1996 $ $ 

Assessments alld Taxes Collected 0 $ 0 0 0 1.097 217.493 

Interesl lIl~Oll|e 0 $ 0 0 0 o 0 0 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0 682,802 

Ccr(ificates and Bonds Retired 

344,740 (I 310,992 $ 57,618 $ 1,027,542 $ 264.184 417,770 $ 74,097 $ 153,104 $ 314,556 



Inlercst Expense 0 $ 2~ 0 0 240 051 15.738 

Fiscal Charges 

83,881 $ 7.946 S 98,625 $ 

Operating Transfers 
11 $ 0 0 0 o 0 0 0 o 0 o 0 0 0 0 586,184 161.664 

11 $ (1,440) 0 
(1,440) (5,304) 22,620 (5,961) (553) (41,741) (11,595) (18,353) (17,998) (2,007) (7,235) 0 1,270,308 508,688 

Residual Eqnily Transfers 

747.859 $ 1,688,000 $ 0 $ 

Correclion of Error 0 $ 0 0 0 o 0 0 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 (132,4(;5) 0 0 

Fund Balance (I)ell( Beginning lind of Year of Yeal 0 :',~o5 2448 4,081 ~2,a9o t~i,629 
cl(~,lll) 
t4(,426) 143,353) 
I713,73) 2 ~,.807 27,~t2 0 ,2 "0 308 5fl8 (,88 (132,465) $ (378,654)_ $ l,l "71,,~81 6,163 $ ~ $ 80,54~;__ $ 300,303 $ 0 $ (759,505) $ ('U'8 (~,1) 



CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES As of and For the Year Ended April 30, 1997 
CAPITAL PROJECT I~TJNDS 

To account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds or trust funds). AIP - 15 FUND 
The AIP - 15 Fund is used to account for the reconstruction of Central Avenue project is funded by federal and state sources. 1-20 CORRIDOR FUND The 1-20 Corridor Fund is used to account for construction projects that are funded from the issuance of sales tax increment bonds. ARMAND/BI~EARD FUND The Armand/Breard Fund is used to account for the proposed realignment of the Armand/Breard intersection. This is a Federal Aid Urban Systems Project, financed 80% by Federal funds and 20% by local funds. UMTA CAPITAL GRANTS FUND 

NORTIt 197"1t STREET FUND The North 19th Street Fund is used to account for the three-laning of North 19th Street from Hudson Lane to Forsythe Avenue. This is a Federal Aid Urban Systems Project, financed 80% by Federal funds and 20% by local funds. NLU SOFTBALL COMPLEX FUND 
The NLU Softball Complex Fund is used to account for the construction of a new softba complex with 5% Federal funds and 50% loc;d funds. 
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CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES As of and For the Year Ended April 30, 1997 
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS (Continued) 

POPE~WESTMINSTER FUND 

NORTH 18771 STREET EXTENSION FUND 
The North 18th Street Extension Fund is used to account for construction of the Norlh 18th Extension to Interstate 20. Cost will be financed 80% by Federal funds and 20% by local funds. 

NORTH 18TH STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY FUND The North 18th Street Right-of-Way Fund is used to account for acquisition of right-of- way from Washington Street to Interstate 20. KANSAS LANE IMPROVEMENTS FUND 
The Kansas Lane Improvements Fund is used to account for the four-laning of Kansas from Milhaven Road to DeSiard Street. This is a Federal Aid Urban Systems Project, financed 80% by Federal funds and 20% by local fimds. TEMPLE-INLAND FUND 

1988 STREET OVERLAY PHASE H FUND The 1988 Street Overlay Phase II Fund is used to account for capital improvements to streets, with costs being financed by local funds and assessments of property owners. ASPHALT RECYCLING FUND 
The Asphalt Recycling Fund is used to account for the street overlay of Bres Avenue and Hudson Lane and is funded by FHWA and assessments of property owners. 



CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES As of and For the Year Ended April 30, 1997 
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS (Continued) 

HA WES STREET PUhlP STATION FUND 
The Hawes Street Pump Station Fund is used to account for capital improvements to the Hawes Street Pump Station, with funds being provided 70% from state and 30% from local. ROOF REPAIRS FUND The Roof Repairs Fund is used to account for major repairs to roofs resulting from a hailstorm. Costs are being funded by insurance proceeds and city contributions. AlP - 14 FUND The AIP - 14 Fund is used to account for tile reconstruction of Central Avenue. This project is funded by Federal and state sources. CITY COURT AND JAIL FUND The City Court and Jail Fund is used jail expansion. The costs of this project are SELMAN FIELD GOLF COURSE FUND 

Io account for construction of a new city court and being, covered by bond proceeds. 
The Selman Field Golf Course Fund is used to account for the rebuilding of Selman Field Golf Course. The cost is funded by local sources. POPE~WESTMINSTER~OLIVER ROAD FUND The Pope/Westminster/Oliver Road Fund is used for the construction of a drainage collection syslem for the area. The project is a part of statewide flood control project financed by '70% state funds and 30% local funds. 

MISCELLANEOUS NEIGHBORHOOD DRAINAGE FUND The Miscellaneous Neighborhood funds expended on various local drainage Drainage Fund was established to account for loca projects. 
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CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana SUPI'LEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES As of and For the Year Ended April 30, 1997 
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS (Continued) 

CALYPSO EXTENSION FUND 
The Calypso Extension Fund was established to account for expenditures associated with the extension of Calypso Street. The monies for this project will come from Federal and local sol_lrces. 

DEMOLITION OF PROPERTY FUND The Demolition of Property Fund was established to account for the cost of demolishing condemned buildings that have been ordered demolished. The cost will be funded by the General Fund. DESIARD PLAZA EXTENSION FUND 
The DeSiard Plaza Street Extension Fund was established to account for the cost of engineering and construction costs associated with the extension. MONROE DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT MASTER PLAN FUND 
The Downtown Redevelopment Master Plan Fund was established to account for the cost of a study for tile revitalization of downtown Monroe. "ll~e cost will be funded by Federal and local funds. 

ALP-07 FUND The ALP-07 Fund was established to account for the cost of a study and engineering cost in preparation of the airport drainage system. The associated costs are funded from Federal and state sources. ALP-09 -13 FUND 
The AIP-09-13 Fund was established to account for expenses associated with Drainage hnl-,rovements, Phase IIA and Drainage Phase Iit3. URBAN SYSTEMS 1992 FUND 
The Urban Systems 1992 Fund was established for a city wide ow~.rlay of eligible streets using 80% Federal and 20% local funds. 
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CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana 
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES As of and For the Year Ended April 30, 1997 
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS (Continued) 

FORS YTHE PA RI( FUND 
The Forsythe Park Fund is used to account for improvements to Forsythe Park using state and local sources. 

TOWER DRIVE FUND The Tower Drive Fund accounts for tile construction of the Tower Drive connector which will connect North 18th to U.S. 165 at Northeast [)rive, using 80% Federal and 20% local funds. FLOOD CONTROl., APPLICATION FUND The Flood Control Application Fund was established to accrue engineering expense incurred for the preparation of applications fox' funding under the statewidc flood control program for the Rochelle Gravity Collection and the Easl Parkview levee and pump station flood control projects. STATE FUNDED AIPS FUND The State Funded AIPS Fund accounts for projects which are fundexl one hundred percent from the State Aviation Trust Fund. Projects include the reconstruction of Operations/Construction Avenue, Special Use Pavement Area, and overlay and lighting of runway 18/:36. STADIUM DRIVE FUND The Stadium Drive Fund accounts for a project repairing erosion to the Edgewater Dam Proiect costs are to be slmred between Northeast Louisiana University and the City of Monroe 
EAST PARKVIEW FLOOD CONTROL FUND The East Parkview Flood Control Fund accounts for the construction of a pump station and levee system to prevent backwater flooding in the East Parkview Subdivision. 



CITY OF MONROE Monrue, Louisiana SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES As of and For the Year Ended April 30, 1997 
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS (Continued) 

FORSYTHE/CHA UVIN FLOOD CONTROL FUND The Forsythe/Chauvin Flood Control Fund accounts for the construction of a levee and pump station, to protect the area between U.S. Highway 165 off Deborah Drive and the Union Pacific Railroad levee. 
RIVER OAKS FLOOD CONTROL APPLICATION FUND The River C)aks Flood Control Application Fund accounts for the project to raise tile existing levee ill River Oaks from Deborah Drive to the Louisiana Power & Light power lille, to construct a new levee from the power lille to the Ouachita River Levee, and to construct a pump station. 
NORTH FOURTH STREET UNDERPASS FUND The North Fourth Street Underpass Fund accounts for the project to construct all underpass at the North Fourth and DeSiard Streets to eliminate traffic congestion caused by the Kansas City Southern Railway. NORTH TENTH STREET STORM~SEWER FUND The North Tenth Street Storua/Sewer Fund accounts for the project to spot repair joint failures in the North Tenth Street Storm Sewer. 
The Undesignated Fund was created by the City Council to establish "reserve" funds for projects which come up after the budget is prepared. POPE/WESTMINSTER/BELOIT/SPENCER FUND Tile Pope/Westminster/Benoit/Spencer Fund is used for the construction of a drainage collection syslem tot tile area. The project is a part of statewide flood control project financed by 70% state and 30% local funds. 
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CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana 
SUPPLEMENTAL ]INFORMATION SCHEDULES As of and For the Year Ended April 30, 1997 
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS (Continued) 

TRI-DISTRICT BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB FUND The Tri-District Boys and Girls Club Fund is to account for the overlay of the parking lot of the Tri-District Boys and Girls Club. The project is to be funded by local funds. AlP - 16 FUND The AIP-16 fund was established to engineering of the airport drainage system and State sources. account for expenses associ~ted with the study and The associated costs are funded from both Federal 
CHASE MANItATTAN RECORDS STORAGE FACILITY FUND 
The Chase. Manhattan Records Storage Facility fund is used to account for tile construction of a special-purpose storage facility in the Airport Industrial Park. The cost of the project is being funded by a state grant ($350,000) and transfers from the General Fund ($150,000). "File balance of the cost is being paid by Chase Manhattan. RECREATION DEVELOPMENT FUND 
Tale Recreation Development Fund is to he used to account for the proceeds of sales of land in the Southwest Industrial Park. q'tlese funds are to cover the costs of development of recreation needs in the City of Monroe. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND 
The Economic Development Fund is to be used to account for the proceeds from sale of land in the Southwest Industrial Park. These proceeds will then be used for economic development in the City. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT REQUIREMENT FUND The Americans With Disabilities Act Requirements Fund is to be used to account for the cost of major consm~ction projects within city departments that are required to bring the city in compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act. These projects will be funded with local funds. 



CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES As of and For the Year Ended April 30, 1997 
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS (Continued) 

ASHELY, GRAYLING LANE FUND The Ashely, Grayling Lane fund is used to account for Phase II of improving the drainage on major culverts near the intersection of these streets using 100% of local funds. RIVER OAKS FLOOD PROTECTION FUND The River Oaks Flood Protection Fund accounts for the project to raise the existing levee in River Oaks from Deborah Drive to the Louisiana Power & Light power line, to construct a new levee from the power line to the Ouachita River Levee, and to construct a pump station, 
ROCHELLE GRAVITY OUTFALL FUND The Rochelle Gravity Outfall fund is used to account for expenses associated with a collection system that will be installed along Glenmar, Auburn, Roselawn, and Rochelle Streets, which will empty into a major drainage canal paralleling the Missouri-Pacific Railroad and the Rochelle Street Pumping Station. The pumping s~,ation was previously designed to handle runoff from from this area. This project will be financed 70% by the Statewide Flood Control System and 30% from City funds. CHASE MANItATTAN SERVICE ROAD FUND The Chase Manhattan Service Road fired is used to account for expenses associated with the construction of a service road on the west side of Kansas Lane. The service road will profide an intersection for traffic at Kansas Lane and Construction Avenue. This project will be financed 40% by local funds. 
NO'RTIf SPENCER OUTFALL FUND The North Spencer Ouffall fund is part of the overall Pope/Westminster Drainage Collection System. This is Phase IV of V phases to the Pope/Westminster System. The North Spencer Ouffall places various sizes of (12" to 60") RCP storm drains, catch basins and related items necessary to complete this project along the north end of Spencer Street. This project is financed 70% fi'om the Statewide Flood Control with a 30% match by the City. 
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CITY OF MONROE Monroe, I.,ouisiana SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES As of and For the Year Ended April 30, 1997 
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS (Continued) 

BLACK/CLA WSON FUND The Black]C.lawson fund is used to account for site preparations to attract the investments of potential industries to locate in the Air Industrial Park. HUNTINGTON PARK STORM SEWER FUND 
The Ituntington Park Storm Sewer Fund accounts for the construction of a storm wateT drainage system. The project is being financed by assessments of property owners in the improvement area and local funds. 

AIRPORT INDUSTRIAL PARK FUND The Airport Industrial Park Fund accounts for funds accumulated from the sale of Monroe Air Industrial Park land used to fund capital improvements in the Monroe Regional Airport. GARRETT ROAD FUND 
The Garrett Road Fund accounts for the widening of Garrett Road at the Garrett Road and 1-20 interchange. TOWER ARMAND CONNECTOR FUND 
The Tower-Armand Connector Fund accounts for the construction of the Tower Drive connector which connects North 18th to U. S. 165 at Northeast Drive. This project will be funded from the issuance of sales tax increment bonds. 

WF, BSTER STREET DRAINAGE FUND The Webster Street Drainage Fund accounts for improvements in the storm water drainage system of the Webster Street area. The project is being funded by local funds. OPERA TIONS ROAD~CONSTRUCTION A VENUE FUND The Operations Road/Construction Avenue Fund is used to account for improvements to these thoroughfares to provide better ingress and egress to the Monroe Airport and the Airport Industrial Park. The cost of the project is being funded by Federal Sources. 
84 



CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana SUPPLEMENTAl, INFORMATION SCHEDULES As of and For lhe Year Ended April 30, 1997 
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS (Continued) 

CENTRAL SHOP AND WAREHOUSE FUND The Central Shop and Warehouse Fund is being used to account for the costs of constructing a centralized shop and warehouse facility for the operations of the City's various departments. The cost of the project is being fimded with City funds in the form of 10 year certificates of indebtedness. 
BERNS TEIN PARK DRIVE FUND The Bernstein Park Drive fund is used lo account for the street construction which w reprove the accessibility of traffic to the Louisiana Purchase Gardens & Zoo from U.S. 165 INFRASTRUCTURE FUND The Infrastructure Fund is used to account for construction of miscellaneous street in the City. L4MY LANE FUND 
The Lamy Lane Fund is used to account for the widening of Lamy Lane 
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CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES As of and For the Year Ended April 30, 1997 
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

To account for operations (a) that are financed or operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of tile governing body is that the costs (expenses including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided thai periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes. 
MUNICIPAL AIRPORT FUND The Municipal Airport Fund is used to account for the operations of the Monroe Regiona Airport. All activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund incJuding, but not limited to, administration, operations, maintenance, billing and collection. 
MONROE TRANSIT SYSTEM FUND The Monroe Transit System Fund is used to account for the operations of the Monroe Transit System. All activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund, including, but not limited to, administration, operations, maintenance and collections. 
CIVIC CENTER FUND The Civic Center Fund is used to account for all activities related to the operation of the Civic Center. Snch activities include administration, operation, maintenance, billing and collection. 
LOUISIANA PURCHASE GARDENS AND ZOO FUND The Louisiana Purchase Gardens and Zoo Fund is used to account for the administration operation, and maintenance of zoo grounds and related facilities. 
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CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES As of and For the Year Ended April 30, 1997 
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - ENTERPRISE FUNDS (Continued) 

EXCURSION BOAT FUND 
The Excursion Boat Fund is used to account for all the activities associated with the renting and operation of the Twin City Queen excursion boat. 

LIVESTOCK ARENA FUND 

UTILITY DEPARTMENT FUND 
Tbe Ulility Department Fund is used to account for the provision of water and sewcr services to the residents of the city. All activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund, including, but not limited to, administration, operation, maintenance, financing and related deb! service, and billing, and collection. 
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ASSETS 

CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana PROPRIETARY FUND TYPF - ENTERPRISE FUNDS COMBINING BALANCE StlEET AS OF APRIL 30, 1997 

Current Assets: Cash and cash equivalents Cash investments Accounts receivable, net l)uc from other funds hlventories Prepaid expenses l~olld issuance costs Total current assets Restricted A~:sets: Cash and cash cquiwdents Investments. at cost Accounts receivable l)uc from other funds Total restricted assets Property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation Zoo llnllnHls 
TOTAl, ASSETS 

MUNICIPAL AIRPORT 
52,714 0 29,593 598.251 779 0 0 681.337 
0 10,505,183 0 

MONROE TRANSIT SYSTEM 
0 0 160.471 0 141,903 0 0 302.374 

0 2.633.904 0 

CIVIC CENTER 
0 0 28.492 58 0 83.089 0 
1.213 0 0 0 1.213 5.694.412 0 

LOUISIANA PURCIIASF GARDENS AND ZOO 
4.000 0 14,255 0 10.142 0 0 28.397 

0 1.743.809 75.422 11.186.520 $ 2.936.278 $ 5.807.264 1.847.628 



I';X('URSION IIOAT 
0 0 1,000 1,690 0 1,075 0 3.765 

197.089 0 

IJVESTOCK ARENA 
0 0 255 0 0 0 0 255 

0 3(10.200 0 $ 210.854 S 300,455 

UTILITY DEPARTMENT 
1,221,363 2,895,812 634.070 992.768 514.885 10,740 112.695 
281,611 0 0 0 281.611 33,370,310 0 

TOTAl. 1997 1996 
1,278.077 2.895,812 868,136 1,592,767 667,709 104,904 112.695 7,520.100 

54.444,907 75.422 $ 62,323,253 

102 

390.793 0 1,174,289 834.689 682,038 94,635 91,695 3.268.139 3,597.977 0 0 0 3,597.977 56,212,488 87,984 S 63,166,588 



 
CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisialla PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - FNTERPRISE FUNDS COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED) AS OF APRIL 30, 1997 

LIAIHI.ITIleS AND FUND EQUITY l,labllilles: Current liabilities: Aceounls payable Accrued payroll Due to other funds P.etainagc payable l)cfcrred revenue Current porfon of long-term debt Other current liabilities Total current liaMlities Current liabilities (payable from restricted assets) Customer deposits Current portion of revenue bonds payable Accrued intercst l)uc to other funds Total current liabilities (payable lrom restricted assets) l.ong-tcnn liabilities: General obligation bonds Revenue bonds, net l)];O liability Advanccs from other funds Total liabilities Fuud equity: Contributed capital Retained earnings {deficit}: Unreserved rl oral fund equity TOTAl. I.IAIHI,ITII,'S AND FUNI) EQUITY 

MUNICIPAl AIRPORT 

15.471 35,595 0 0 0 0 0 51.066 

0 0 t~ 12,291 63,357 

MONROE TRANSIT SYSTEM 

71,347 72.204 0 0 0 0 0 143,551 

0 
0 0 0 51.977 195,528 

19,866,120 7,739,015 (8,742,957) 11,123,163 (4,998,265[ 2,740,750 

CIVIC CENTER 

83.730 59,276 16,840 0 6,352 305,000 0 

0 

828,640 
14,058,153) 4,978,624 

LOUISIANA PURCIIASI'; GARDENS AND ZOO 

31,484 98.217 2,826 0 6,946 0 0 

0 0 0 22,817 162,290 
3,805,736 (2,120,398) 1,685,338 

11,186,520 $ 2,936.278 $ 5,807,264 $ 1,847.628 



EXCURSION BOAT 

2,967 0 0 0 ~15 0 0 3.882 

0 

3.882 
(52,4,13) 196.9'72 
210.854 

LIVESTOCK ARENA 

6,293 0 0 0 1.275 0 0 7.568 

0 

7,568 370,1114 ~_77.227) 292.887 
300,455 S 

UTILITY DEI%RTMENT 

445.914 4(17,163 2,331,546 0 0 0 363.121 

TOTAL 1997 1996 

667,206 672,455 2,351,212 0 15,488 305,000 363.121 4,374,482 
695,443 695,443 
205.000 52.458 0 952,901 
0 2,320,000 318.254 4,215,036 11.353,935 

3,408,566 28.680,319 

205.000 52.458 0 952,901 
330,000 2.320.000 318.254 4,329,563 12.625.200 

77,810 683,341 695,990 0 68,346 285.000 35(I,000 2,160,487 
867,099 170,000 55,948 16,439 1,109.486 
635.000 2,311,504 80(I,000 2.966,803 9,983,280 66,338,930 66.010,781 __~16,640.877) 49,698,053 (12,827,,473) 53.183,308 

$ 62.323,253 $ 63.166,588 



 
CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - ENTERPRISE FUNDS COMBINING SC}tEI)ULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CItANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 1997 

OPERATING REVENUES Charges for services: Airport Industrial park Maintenance and usage fees Fares Charlcfs Advertising Ticket sales and other Admissions Concessions and rides Rentals Water sales I)elinquent penalties Sewerage fces Tap fees l)crmfls Total charges for services Othcr operating revenue "l'olal operating revcnue OPERATING EXPENSES Salaries, wages and benefits Materials, repairs and supplies Utilities and communications Depreciation and amortization Insurance Administrative services Promoter's expenses Other operating expenses Total operating expenses OPERATIN(3; INCOME (LOSS) 

MUNICIPAL AIRPORT 
987,981 94,762 0 0 0 (I 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,082,743 0 

MONROE TRANSIT SYSTEM 
0 0 0 466,240 1,005 5,191 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 472,436 951 

CIVIC CENTER 

1,203,376 0 1,082,743 473,387 1,203,376 
369,339 103.544 112,021 712,655 t? 0 0 145,502 

1,160,110 579,831 38,298 319,231 0 0 0 390.079 

714,215 318,794 350,308 285,251 126,639 0 68(I,316 287.692 1,443,061 2,487,549 2,763,215 

LOUI SI ANA PUR('H ASE GARDENS AND ZOO 
0 0 (/ 0 0 4.242 0 1,17,287 I / 3,~72 0 o 0 0 0 0 2t,5,501 0 2t,5.5(q 
7(,9.04(l 279,151 I I s,044 I I(),310 0 l) 0 27t,, 137 ,549,q)~;2 (360,318) (2,014,162) (1,559,839) (1,284,181) 



EXCURSION BOAT 

24,715 0 

LIVESTOCK ARENA 
13 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7511 26,719 0 0 0 0 0 27,469 0 

UTILITY DEPARTMENT 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,243,483 270,627 3,256,155 114,961 4,525 7,889,751 6.996 

TOTAL 1997 
987,981 94,762 0 490,955 1,005 9,433 1,203,376 147,287 114,722 26,719 4,243,483 270,627 3,256,155 114,961 4,525 10,965,991 7.947 

998,931 120,521 20,120 473,324 1,332 5,741 1,471,693 155,681 107,321 27,900 4,692,769 247,819 3,362,771 30,410 4.025 11,720,358 6.083 24,715 27,469 7,896,747 10,973,938 11,726,441 
31,204 21,460 0 11,448 0 0 0 43.241/ 107.352 

0 20,642 26,401 32,257 0 0 0 3.135 82.435 

3,049,391 3,972,067 1,076,505 1,859,783 0 0 0 922.009 10.879.755 

6,093,299 5,295,489 1,718,577 3,330,935 126,639 0 680,316 2,067,794 19,313,049 

5,435,890 3,793,617 1,475,960 3,261,335 348,240 785,000 936,769 2,883,972 18.920.783 (82,637) (54,966) (2,983,01181 (8,339,111) (7,194,342) 
04 



 
CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - ENTERPRISE FUNDS COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CIIANGES IN RETAINED FARNINGS (DEFICIT) (CONTINUED) FOR TttE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 1997 

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE) Operating grants Gain (los,,;) on sale of assels Interest income lntcrest expense Property taxes Tota] nonoperating revenue (expense) INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS 
OPERATING TRANSFERS IN (OUT) Operating transfers in Operating transfers (out) Total operating transfers 
NET INCOME (LOSS) DEPRECIATION ON CAPITAL ASSETS ACQUIRED BY GRANTS 

MUNICIPAL AIRPORT 
0 204,788 0 0 0 204,788 

MONROE TRANSIT SYSTEM 
598,870 0 0 0 0 598.870 

CIVIC CENTER 
0 0 0 (61,640) 711,847 

LOUI S I ~,NA PUR(IIASE GARI)ENS AND ZOO 
0 tl,706 0 0 711.916 650.207 721.622 

(155,530) (1,415,292) (909,632) (562,559) 
0 (521,343~. (521,343~. 835,176 0 835.176 883,843 0 883,843 (676,873) (580,116) (25,789) 
0 0 0 

44(I,4(14 0 441~A64 
0 

RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT), I~eginning of year (8,066,084~ . (4,418,149) __(4,032,364) (1,9_9~: }!13~ RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR (8,742,957) $ (4,_998,265) $__(4,058,153) $(2,12(L~98) 



EXCURSION BOAT 
0 0 0 0 0 
0 

LIVESTOCK ARENA 
0 0 0 0 0 

UTILITY DEPARTMENT 
0 0 159,413 (120,985) 0 
38,428 

TOTAL 1997 
598,870 214,494 159,413 (182,625) 1.423.763 2,213,915 

1996 
877,329 565,532 154,576 (202,487) 1,214,488 2,609,438 

(82,637) (54,966) (2,944,580) (6,125,196) (4,584,9/)4) 
64,650 0 64.650 

16,969 0 16,969 
716 (2~j1 465 2,241,818 __ (521,594) 1,720,224 2,309,370 (703,264). 1,606.106 (17,987) (37,993) (2,944,115) (4,404,972) (2,978,798) 

0 17.606 
(34,456) 56 836 ___A )_. 
(52,443~) $___~77,227~ $ 

573,962 591,568 591,568 
5,778,719 
3,408,566 

105 

.__~_1__2,827,473 ) (10,440,243) 
S~_!_6,640,877) $ (12,827,473) 



CASH I'ROVII)EII {USEI)) BY OPERA3 ING A,~I'I VITI I,;S Operating Income (Lo~s) Adjustments 1o Re~neile Operating In.me (Ix,ss) to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: l)epreci~ tion and amordz~0on Gain (Io:~s) on sale of assets Changes in current assets and liabilities Ac~unts re~'ivable hwenlory Prcpa d expenses Due horn other funds A~,unts payable A~rued payroll and benc fits Due to other funds Advml~ billings and deposits l)efcrJ ed revenue Comp:nsated absents Other, net Told Adjustments Net (:ash Provided (Used) Ey Operating Activities CASI[ I'ROVIDI,;I) IIISED) BY NONCAPITAI FINANCING ACTI VI11F21 Operating transfers in Operating transfers out Increase (decrease) in customer deposits Rebates and refunds Grants Property taxes Nel cash pr~wided (used) by noncapital financing activities CASll I'ROVIDED (USED) BY CAI'ITAt. AN[I REI.ATEI) FINANCING ACTIVI1 It,S Conlributcd c~tpll al I)ccrcase in I)EQ cleanup liability Pro~eds from sale of assets Acquisitions o: capital assets Cash used for bond refunding l'rincipal paid on bonds Inlercst paid on bonds Net cash provided (used) by capital alld Iclatcd financing activities (ASII PROVIDEI) (IISED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES ]merest in~ml : Restricted ass~ is Net Cash Provided By Invc sting Aclivltie NCREASE 4I)ECREASE) IN CASII AN[) CASII EQUIVALENTS CASII AND CASH EQUIVAI,EN'I~S. beginning of year ASII AND CASH EQUIVAI,EN'I 8. liND OF YEAR 

CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana I'ROPRIETARy FUND TYI'E - ENTERPRISE FUNDS COMBINING SCIIEDUI,E OF CASII FLOWS FOR 1lIE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30,1997 
MUNICIPAL AIRPORT MONROE TRANSIT SYSTEM CIVIC CENTER 

LOUISIANA PURCIIASE GARDENS AND ZOO 
$ (360.318) $ (2.014.162) $ (1.559,839) $ (1.284.18 
712.655 204.788 

897.109 536.79I 

209.435 (16,535 0 0 64.243 (7,810 11,552 0 0 0 0 

0.310 
(2,481~ 0 0 0 24.776 10,977 (32,520) 0 (69) 0 0 0,993 11.434,046) (1.208,967 ) (1,173ASS) 

835,176 0 0 0 598.870 0 
883.843 0 0 0 0 711.847 

440.464 0 0 0 0 711.916 1521,343) 1.434.046 1.595,690 1,152,380 
1,244 0 43,712 (7.690) 0 0 0 37.266 
0 
52314 0 

691.638 0 0 1691,638) 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 

0 0 0 (75.747) 0 (285,000) 161.640) (422.387) 
0 (35.664 36,877 

226.835 0 9.706 (214.233 0 0 0 22.308 
0 1,500 2.500 



EXCURSION BOAT LIVESTOCK ARENA UTILITY DEPARTMENT 

41.7:!8 (64,398) ( 13.238~. 
64,650 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 252 0 0 0 1252 
0 0 

6,969 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 (3.731 0 0 0 

1.859383 6 64,326 31.643 2251 (723.624) 392.879 (9.279) 2398.017 0 0 0 

3.330.935 204.788 

(61,469t (61,469) 4.554,527 6553584 ,571519 

3.261.335 583,193 (122,561) (47.988) 14.569 (347,933) (251.625) 11,861) 1,378.954 (64,523) (204,094) 0 18,261) 4,]86.2O5 11,785.527) ._ 13.(~)8,137) 
2,241,818 (521,594 (171,656 0 598.870 ],423.763 

2.309.370 (703.264 48,295 0 877,329 1,214,488 

(3,731) (1,110,347) (1.477,143) (673,255) 
59,413 

59.413 0 59,413 
44!1,394 467.944 3.949,393 3,988,770 

54,576 06,054 
3.663,314 3,988.770 



CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana 
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES As of and For the Year Ended April 30, 1997 
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 

To account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the governmental entity on a cost reimbursement basis. EMPLOYEE GROUP INSURANCE FUND 
The Employee Group Insurance Fund is used to account for monies accumulated to provide medical coverage for employees of lhe City. 
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CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - INTERNAL SERVICE FUND BALANCE SHEET AS OF APRIL 30, 1997 AND 1996 

ASSETS Current A~sets Cash and cash equivalents Accounts recciw~blc, net Due from other funds Advances to Other Funds 
TOTAL ASSETS 
Current Liabilities Claims payable LIABII,IT1ES 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 

] 08 

1997 1996 39,469 33,886 2,920 2,432,012 $ 2,508,287 $ 2,508,384 

$ 2,508,287 $ 2,508,384 $ 2,508,287 $ 2,508,384 



 

CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - INTERNAL SERVICE FUND SCIIEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS FOR THE YEARS ENDED APRIL 30, 1997 AND 1996 
OPERATING REVENUES Contributions - group insurance premiums Other operating revenues Total operating revenues 
OPERATING EXPENSES Benefits paid Administrative services Reinsurance/conversion premiums Total operating expenses OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) NONOPERATING REVENUES Interest income INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS OPERATING TRANSFERS Operating transfers in Operating transfers out Total operating transfers NET INCOME 
RETAINED EARNINGS, beginning of year 
RETAINED EARNINGS, END OF YEAR 
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1997 1996 
4,869,169 211,366 $ 4,988.4~B 330,92~) 5,080,535 5,319,323 
4,640,768 202,771 238,724 5,082,263 

4,922,111 164,841 235,855 5,322,81r7 (1,728) (3,4~4) 
1,728 3.4~4 
0 

0 



 

CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana PROI'RIETARY FUND TYPE - INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 
STATEMENTS O17 CASH FLOWS FOR TIlE YEARS ENDED APRIL 30, 1997 AND 1996 

CASIt PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES Operating Income (Loss) Adjuslmcnts to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: Changes in current assets and liabilities Accounts receivable Duc from other funds Accounts payable Advances from other funds Claims payable Total Adjustments Net Cash Provided (Used) By Operating Activities CASII PROVIDED (USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES lntcrcst income Net Cash Provided (Used) By Investing Activities INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASII EQUIVAI.ENTS CASII AN[) CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 

1997 1996 
(1,728) $ (3,484) 
119,515 2,150,996 0 (2,255,969) 14,445 
12,717 

(28,401) (349,686) (6,202) 0 385,532 1,243 
(2,241) 

1,728 3,484 1,728 
14,445 25,024 

3,484 
1,243 
23,781 CASll AN[) CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 39,469 $ 25.024 
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CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES As of and For the Year Ended April 30, 1997 
FIDUCIARY FUND TYPE - AGENCY FUNDS 

To accounl tor assets held in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units, and/or other funds. 
CASH BOND FUND The Cash Bond Fund is used to account for the receipt and disposition of city court bonds and permits and bonds issued to pawnbrokers, second hand dealers, and transient merchants. EVIDENCE ROOM CASH The Evidence Room Cash Fund is to be used to account for cash that is seized as evidence in criminal cases. BOND JUDGEMENT FORFEITURE FUND 
The Bond Judgement Forfeiture Fund accounts for bond forfeitures from bonding companies and cash bond forfeitures. These funds are split 25% to Prosecuting Attorney, 25% to Indigent Defendant Board, 25% to Monroe City Court and 25% to the Monroe City Marshall. 

TAX COLLECTION FUND The Tax Collection Fund is used to account for the collection and payment to the appropriate taxing authorities of sales taxes, property taxes, and hotel-motel taxes collected by the City on their behalf. CITY SCHOOL MAINTENANCE TAX FUND 
The City School Maintenance Tax Fund is used to account for the receipt and payment to the city school board of property taxes collected by the City on behalf of the school board. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN FUND 
The Deferred Compensation Plan Fund is used to account for employee deductions, inw:stment earnings and eventual payment of benefits to employees under deferred compensation plans established by the City under Section 457 of the Internal Revenue Code. 
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CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana FIDUCIARY FUND TYPE - AGENCY FUNDS COMBINING BALANCE SHEET AS OF APRIL 30, 1997 

ASSETS Current Assets Cash and cash cquiwdents Accounts receivable, net Due from other funds l)cferred compensation plan assets Total Current Assets Restricted Assets (;ash and cash equivalents Total Restricted Assets TOTAL ASSETS 
LIABILITIES Current Liabilities I)uc to ot:hcr funds Due to other agencies Deposits clue othels l)cfcrrcd compcnsatiou benefits payable l)cfcrrcd revenue TOTAL LIABILITIES 

CASH BOND 
48,943 0 0 0 

EVIDENCE ROOM CASH 
33,417 0 0 0 

BOND JUDGEMENT FORFEITURE 
5,490 0 0 0 

TAX COLLE('3'I ON 
3,5"74,739 2S~.299 

48,943 33,417 5,490 3,85~ 
0 0 0 0 0 

0 1} ~8 
3,714 3,714 $ 48,943 $ 33,417 $ 5,490 $ 3.8~,1.752 

]50 0 48,793 0 0 
0 0 33,417 0 0 

0 5,490 0 0 0 
0 3,57q.245 0 0 2~,2.507 

$ 48,943 $ 33,417 $ 5,490 $ 3,8~,1.752 



 

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN 
0 0 0 529.157 529.157 
0 0 

BOND FORFEITURE SPECIAL FUND 
55,063 0 0 0 55.063 
0 0 529,157 $ 55,063 $ 

o $ 55,063 o o o 529,157 $ 55,063 $ 

REIIAB SURETY BOND FUND 
o $ o o o o 
o o 
o $ 

o $ 0 0 0 0 0 $ 

TOTALS April 30, 1997 
3,717,652 283,299 0 529.157 

April30 1996 
1,472,993 241,056 0 393,709 4,530,108 2,107,758 

3,714 127.979 3,714 127,979 
4,533,822 $ 2,235,737 

150 $ 3,639,798 82,210 529,157 282,507 
0 1,535,141 65,831 393,709 241.056 

4,533,822 $ 2,235,737 



CASII BONI) FUNI) ASSETS Cash I.IAIHLITII,;S Deposits duc others 

CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana FIDUCIARY FUND TYPES - AGENCY FUNDS COMBINING SCIIEDULE OF CIIANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 1997 

MONRI)E POLICE DEPARTMEN'I EVIDENCI,; ROOM CASIi 
ASSEI'S Cash I,IAIIIIJTIES l)cposits due others BONI) JUDG1,;MENT I~'ORFF.ITIJRE ASSETS Cash IJAIIIIJTIES Due to other agencies TAX (?OIJA~ZCTION FUND ASSFTS Cash Restricted cash Changes in cash Reccivables/due from other funds TOTAl, ASSETS IJAIIII.ITIES Due to other agencies - cash I)cfcrrcd revenue TOTAL IJABII.ITIES 

IIALANCE BALANCF APRIL 30, 1996 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS APRIL 30, 1997 
32.174 $ 30.805 $ 114,036) $ 
32,174 8 30.805 

33,657 S 25.204 
33.657 S 25.204 
2,200 S 3.552 
2.200 $ 3.552 
1.359,603 $ 127,979 1.487.582 241,056 1,728,638 $ 
1.487.582 $ 241.056 1.728.638 5, 
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98.688.584 3.714 98.692.298 283.299 98.975.597 
98.693.090 282.507 98.975,597 

$ (262) $ 
sm (262)$ 
$ (96.473.448) $ i 1127,979) 196.601.427) (241,056) $I (96.842.483) $ 
$ (96,601,427) $ (241,1156) $ (96,842,483) $ 

48,943 
48.943 

33.417 
33.417 
5A90 
5.49/ 
3,574.739 3.714 3.578.453 283.299 3.861,752 
3.579.245 282.507 



 
CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana FIDUCIARY FUND TYPES - AGENCY FUNDS COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 1997 

I)EFERRED COMPENSATION PI,AN FUNI) ASSFTS Plan assms IJABIIJTIES Plan benefits payable 
BOND I"ORlrI,TrURE SPECIAL FUND ASSETS Cash I,IABIIJTIES Due to othcr agencies REIIAII SURETY BOND FUND ASSETS Cash I,IAIHIJTIES 1)uc to other agencies TOTALS - AIA, AGENCY FUNDS ASSETS Cash P, estrictcd cash Rcccivablcs Plan assets TOTAl, ASSETS 
LIAIHIJTIES l)cposits due others l)cfcrrcd rcvenue l)uc to other agencies l'lan benefits payable TOTAl, IJAIIII,ITIES 

BALANCE BALANCI': APR1L 30, 1996 ADDITIONS I)EDUCTIONS APRIL 30, 1997 
393,709 S 135,861 
393,709 $ 135,861 
44.237 $ 22,903 
44,237 $ 22,903 
1.122 S 0 
1.122 $ 0 
1,472.993 S 127979 241.056 393.7(19 

$ (413) $ 
$ (413) S 
$ (12,077) $ 
$ (12.077).$ 
$ (1,122) 5; 
$ (1,122) $ 

98.771,048 $ (96.526,389) $ 3714 283.299 135,861 
2.235,737 $ 99,i93,922 
65,831 $ 241.056 1,535.141 393,709 

(127.979) (241.056) (413) $ (96,895.837) $ 
56.009 $ 282.507 98.719.545 135,861 2,235,737 $ 99,193,922 
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(39,480) $ (241,056) (96.614,888) (413) 

529.157 

55.063 

3,717,652 3,714 283.299 529,157 4.533.822 
82.36(I 282.507 3.639.798 529.157 4,533,822 



CI)IJ.F(YrlONS Property taxes Sales taxes Cash bonds F.vidence room cash Bond judgment forteitures 1 ~mployee contributions Interest earnings Total collections I)ISTRIIIUTIONS City of Monroe: General fund Prosecuting Attorney City Court City Marshal City of West Monroe Town of Sterlington Town of Riehwood Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe Cily School Board Ouachita l'arish Police Jury Ouachita Parish lqre District Ouachita Parish School Dislrict No. 1 Refunds and forfeits of cash bonds Indigent Defender Board Vendor audit fees l'lan assets purchased Benefits paid Other distributions Total distributions FXCESS OF COLLECTIONS OVER IIISTRIBUTIONS 

CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana FIDUCIARY FUND TYPE - AGENCY FUNDS 

CASII BAI,ANCE AT I]~FGINN1NG YEAR 
CASII ItAI,ANCI" AT ENI) OF YEAR 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30. 1997 
CASII BONI) 0 0 30,805 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14.,036 0 0 0 0 0 4,036 
16.769 32.174 
48,943 

EVIDENCE ROOM CASI! 0 0 0 25,204 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25.444 
(24(I) 33.657 

BOND JUDGEMENT FORFEITURE 0 0 0 0 3,552 0 0 

1AX COIJ J'XYI'ION 2iP.2gg.750 7h,4(13.548 0 0 0 0 

262 
3,290 2,200 

43.{ P( )6.589 (I 0 0 8.285,408 1~4,4(15 ~,%170 1 I,.I,!13,514 2r I,~,5.362 4 Ip92.8(17 
3.49( I.(144 0 {) 2(,4.128 

~(L87 
33.417 $ 5.490 $ 3.s:8,453 



 

IIONI) FOR H,;5TUR5:~ SPI,)CIAL FUNI) 0 0 22.903 0 0 0 0 22,9C3 

12.077 
50.826 44.237 

RE51AII SURETY BOND FUNI) 

0 

1.122 1.122 
(1,122) 1.122 

IIFFICRRED COMPENSATION I'LAN 0 0 0 0 0 1(11,792 34.069 535.865 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 135,448 413 0 135,861 
0 0 

TOTAI.S April 30 1997 20,288,750 78.403.548 53.708 25,204 3,552 101,792 34,069 98,910.623 
43.006.589 65 65 65 8.285,408 104,405 69.170 16.693,514 20,595~362 4,092,807 0 3.490,044 26,113 67 264.128 535.448 413 26.566 96.790,229 
2.120,394 

April 30 1996 24.865,788 53.77(5.009 222,650 169 9,100 94.521 13.604 78,975,841 
40,608.053 500 500 500 7,612.880 101.083 25,890 5,019,998 15.083,574 4.298.970 1,959,375 3.413,064 216,434 5(10 75,200 87,185 2(/.940 0 78,524.646 
1,135.789 55,063 $ 0 $ 0 $ 3.721.366 $ 1.586.984 
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CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES A.~ of and For the Year Ended April 30, 1997 
FIDUCIARY FUND TYPE - PENSION TRUST FUNDS 

To account for assets held in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units, and/or other funds. These include expendable trust: funds. The accounting and reporting treatment for expendable trust funds is concerned with the acquisition, use, and balance of expendable available financial resources. POLICE PENSION AND RELIEF FUND 
The Police Pension and Relief Fund is used to account for a pension fund established for classified employees of the Monroe Police Department who were employed before September 1, 1983 and retire prior to the age of fifty. Upon reaching their fiftieth birthday they are transferred to the state retirement system. Funding is from the City of Monroe;. A portion of the City's contribution is derived from city court fines and liquor licenses. 

BUS DRIVERS' PENSION AND RELIEF FUND 

ELECTRICAL WORKERS" PENSION AND RELIEF FUND 
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CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES As of and For the Year Ended April 30, 1997 
GENERAl, LONG-TERM OI|L1GATIONS ACCOUNT GROUP 
The general long-term obligations account group is used to account for Iong-tenu obligations which are expected to be repaid from governmental funds. 
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 
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CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES As of and For the Year Ended April 30, 1997 
GENERAI~ 

COMPENSATION PAID COUNCIL MEMBERS 
The schedule of compensation paid to council members is presented in compliance with House Concurrent Resolution No. 54 of the 1979 Session of the Louisiana Legislature. Compensation of the council members is included in the general administration - legislative expenditures of the General Fund. In accordance with Section 2-05 of the Home Rule Charter of the City of Monroe, the council, through Ordinance 7868, has set compensation of council members at $750 per month. In addition to the compensation paid all council members, the chairman of the council receives an additional $375 per month to perform the duties of his office. 
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CITY OF MONROE, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION PAID COUNCIL MEMBERS FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 1997 
Council Member 
Lyle Miller Gene Tarver Kay Katz Benny Ausberry Arthur Gilmore Dunham Wright Robert Stevens Jamie Mayo 

District 
1 2 2 3 3 4 4 5* 

_Qpn~ensation Period of Term 9,000 1,500 7,500 1,500 7,500 2,250 7,500 12.750 49,500 
* - Term as Chairrnau of the City Council began July 1, 1996 
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5[1]96 - 4/30[97 5[1[96 - 6/30196 7]1[96 - 4/30/97 5[1]96 - 6]30/96 7[1196 - 4/30/97 5/1[96 - 6/30196 7[1/96 - 4[30]97 5]1]96 - 4]30/97 



 



 



General 

CITY OF MONROE Monroe, Louisiana Notes To Schedule Of Federal Financial Assistance As Of And For The Year Ended April 30, 1997 

The Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance presents the activity of all federal financial assistance programs of the City of Monroe, Louisiana (the City). The City's reporting entity is defined in Note l to the City's financial statements. All federal financial assistance received directly from federal agencies, as well as federal financial assistanee passed through other government agencies, are included on the schedule of Federal Financial Assistance. 
Basis Of Accounting The Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance is presented using the modified accrual basis at accounting, which is described in Note 1 to the City's general purpose financial statements. Relationship Of The Schedule Of Federal Financial Assistance To The General Purpose Financial Statements Of The City Federal financial assistance revenues are reported in the City's General Fund, Special Revenue Funds and Enterprise Funds as follows: 

General Fund 
Special Revenue Funds Capital Project Funds Enterprise Funds 
Total 

lntergovernm ental Revenue Federal Funds 
324,504 1,802,184 
847,619 
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Nonoperating Revenue Operating Grants Total $ 325,504 1,802,184 
847,619 405,268 405,268 



II|~ L.uffey Huffman & Monroe CER11FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
John L. [ulfoy, MBA CP/ Francis I Huflrr'on, CPA L. Red Monlc~,, CPA Esthor AlleC~[ry, CPA Carolyn A CFarkr~, OPA 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL STRUE, TURE BASED ON AN AUDIT OF GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
City of Monroe, Louisiana Monroe, Louisiana We have audited tile general purpose fnancial statements of City of Monroe, Louisiana (the City), as of and for the year ended April 30, 1997, and have issued our report thereon dated October 10. 1997. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, the standards for tinanciat and com~tianc4,, audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and the Louisiana Governmenlal Audit Guide issued by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor and the Louisiana Society of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure. In fulfilling this responsibility, estimates and judgments by management are required to assess the expected benefits and related costs of internal control structure policies and procedures. The objectives of an internal control structure are to provide management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and that transactions are executed in accordance with management's authorization and recorded properly to permit the preparation of general purpose financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Because of inherent limitations in any internal control structure, errors or irregularities may nevertheless occur and not be detected. Also, projection of any evaluation of the structure to future periods is subject to the risk that procedures may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the effectiveness of the design and operation of policies and procedures may deteriorate. In planning and performing our audit of the; general purpose financial statements of the City for the year ended April 30, 1997, we obtained an understanding of the internal control structure. With respect to the internal control structure, we obtained an (318] 387-2672 FAX (318} 322-8866 Page 135 100 N 18th ST ~ PO Box 4745 ~ Monroe LA 71211-4745 MEMBERS OF THE AMERICAN INSllfUfE Oi CER11FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNfANTS 



City of Monroe, Louisiana Audit as of April 30, 1997 
understanding of the design of relevant policies and procedures and whether they had been placed in operation, and we assessed control risk in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the general purpose financial statements and not to provide an opinion on the internal control structure Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. We noted certain matters involving the internal control structure and its operation that we consider to be reportable conditions under standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Reportable conditions are matters coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control structure that, in our judgement, could adversely affect the entity's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in the financial statements. 1. Operating Leases Finding: Generally accepted accounting principles applicable to governmental financial statements call for disclosure of operating lease commitments with a term longer than one year past the balance sheet date and which, by their terms, are noncancelable. In attempting to compile the information to prepare this disclosure, we found the City had inadequate records of its operating lease commitments in most cases. Lease agreements are not maintained, nor are abstracts prepared when leases are executed which contain the significant terms and conditions of tile lease agreements. This leads to the risk that lease payments could continue to be made after the expiration of the lease, payments be made for incorrect amounts or to the wrong payee or that lease payments could continue to be made after the City has returned a piece of leased equipment to the lessor. Recommendation: We recommend the City's internal auditor perform a thorough search of lease and rental expense accounts to determine what recurring lease payments are being made and the equipment covered by such leases. Lessors could then be contacted to obtain copies of the leases. Procedures should be adopted or revised, as appropriate, to provide for the centralized administration of operating leases through maintenance of a copy of all leases in effect and lease abstracts which would include the lessor, the dates of the lease, the payment amount, the equipment covered and the location of the equipment. 
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City of Monroe, Louisiana Audit as of April 30, 1997 
Response: With the implementation of centralized purchasing, we will also include centralization of operating leases. We will refer the question regarding an internal audit to the council chairman for consideration. 
2. Compensated Absences 
Finding In the performance of our procedures on compensated absences for the year ended April 30, 1997, we noted that certain employees' had deficit balances in their sick and vacation accruals. Upon further inquiry with the City's personnel and MI$ Department, we noted that in most cases, the deficit balances were directly related to employees who were on full or partial disability leave with pay during the subject time period. The vacation and sick time tracking system does not maintain a separate compensation code/classification for these types of payments; these types of payments are treated as regular salary and wage payments. This creates a risk that significant deficit compensated absence balances could exist and continue to increase, that personnel on full or partial disability could obtain more benefit than they are entitled to and persons who are not on leave could be paid incorrectly. Recommendation: We recommend that a new pay code be created to track payments made outside of normal scope of compensated absences (vacation and sick leave). The hours and dollar amounts included in this pay code should be reviewed quarterly by a responsible individual in upper management of the City and lines of communication set up with personnel to ensure that adequate records exist to support these payments. Response: In the future, we will place employees who are paid under disability in a separate disability category at the beginning of their payments, so that all such leave will be charged to disability and not to the individual employee. 
3. Supervisory Review of Account Balances Finding: n reviewing year-end balances in certain balance sheet accounts in the Genera 
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City of Monroe, Louisiana Audit as of April 30, 1997 
Fund an(] certain operating statement accounts in other funds, we noted numerous mispostings and accounts with "unusual" balances, i.e., liability accounts with debit balances, asset accounts with credit balances. In the General Fund, we noted debit balances in accounts payable, payroll tax liability and accrued liability accounts which totalled over $900,000. We understand that a new accounting system was implemented during the year and this, along with a general shortage of accounting personnel in general accounting and taxation and revenue, did not allow for sufficient time to perform supervisory level review of balance sheet accounts for obvious, material errors. This leads to the risk that budget-to-actual comparisons will be inaccurate, as the expenditure is still on the balance sheet and has not hit the statements of operations; this could cause significant overspending, as there is an illusion of being significantly under budgeted expenditure levels when in fact that may not be the case. Adequate staffing with qualified personnel and timely, effective review of significant balance sheet accounts (cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and payroll and related liability accounts) will help minimize the risk that financial reporting information used by management will be inaccurate. 
Recommendation: We recommend that the City reassess its staffing requirements in the areas of both general accounting and taxation and revenue and develop a strategic plan to continually upgrade the skills of those personnel. Monthly, the Director of Administration should review significant balance sheet accounts (and related reconciliations as necessary) for unusual items such as those discussed above and obtain timely resolution of any material variance noted. 
Response: We will reassess our staffing requirements in both general accounting and taxation and revenue and determine the level of changes required. In addition, we will incorporate a regular review of significant balance sheet accounts. 
4. Purchasing Policy Finding: Based on our review of the City's purchasing policies and discussion with City personnel, the current purchasing policy provides that all purchases over $200, not including repairs and maintenance to major equipment or vehicles, require a purchase order to be completed and approved prior to purchasing the merchandise. Recurring items or single source items do not require a purchase order. In our tests of controls over nonpayroll cash disbursements, we selected a sample of 40 transactions from a total population of 26,751 transactions. We found 8 of the 40 
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City of Monroe, Louisiana Audit as of April 30, 1997 
items properly included a purchase order in the supporting voucher package (there were 29 instances of recurring purchases or purchases below the $200 floor which do not require purchase orders). However, in all 8 instances noted above, the purchase order was dated subsequent to the attached vendor invoice. We also noted 3 instances out: of the sample of 40 where a purchase order was required by the purchasing poticy but was not completed and attached. In discussions with City accounting personnel, we were informed that departments make the purchase first and the purchase order is completed when the invoice is receiw.,d. If the purchased items are received prior to completion of the purchase order, the receiving copy of the purchase order is signed and dated by the person receiving the merchandise. 
Recommendation: The City's policy does allow for some flexibility in purchase order preparation when, in the judgement of the department head, it is in the best interest of the City to streamline the acquisition of the merchandise in question. The error rate noted in the sample (11 of 40 items, or 27.5%) seems to indicate that there is a lack of understanding of the purchasing policy. Preparation of purchase orders "after the fact" is not the most efficient way to process the transaction, as the funds of the City have already been obligated. In addition, budgetary control is negated by not using purchase orders, as again the funds have already been obligated. 
Response The Central Shop and Warehouse is about to open and with the Central Purchasing System in place these situations should net occur. 
5. General Fixed Assets 
Finding As part of our tests of the City's general fixed assets, we visually inspected purchases totaling $1,694,042 (the majority of which were rolling stock). We noted two items which were not on the General Fixed Assets Detail as of April 30, 1997, as follows: Cost Airport Fire & Rescue Vehicle, purchased February 27, 1997 $297,815 Three-boom Deck Mower, purchased July 26, 1996 29,900 To determine if these were isolated incidents, we then selected purchases greater than $10,000 from the departmental details and traced them to inclusion on the 139 
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master fixed assets detail. The items in this test totalled 19, with an aggregate cost of $419,343. Fourteen items were properly included on the detail list (totalling $352,443). However, 5 Ford Tauruses (total of $66,900) purchased in January and March, 1997 were not included on the detail list but were included on the Pending Assets Report. It was represented to us that all information required for the transfer of these vehicles to the fixed asset detail (the titles) had not been obtained. Further comparison of the 14 items noted above on the fixed asset detail listing disclosed that 3 of the assets were on both the Pending Assets List and the fixed asset detail. Recommendation: To ensure completeness of the City's inventory of General Fixed Assets, we recommend the following: 1) All capital expenditure accounts should be examined by property control on a monthly basis for purchases of capital items to see that they are properly included on the fixed asset detail listing or the Pending Asset Report; 2) All repairs and maintenance accounts should be examined by a responsible individual on a quarterly basis for capital items incorrectly charged to expense; and, 3) Periodically, personnel in Property Control should compare the fixed asset detail to the Pending Asset Report to identify any assets listed in both places. In addition, procedures should be put in place to monitor the length of time an asset is allowed to stay on the Pending Asset Report prior to its transfer to the fixed asset detail listing. 
Response: These recommendations will be implernented with Central Purchasing. Incorrect coding should lessen. 
6. Telecommunications Practices During our tests of expenditures, we selected one month of cellular telephone billings, three months of long distance telephone billings and reviewed the monthly local exchange carrier billings for the City. We noted the City has no formal policy for reimbursement of personal usage of cellular telephones or personal long distance calls, nor is there a policy on who should have cellular telephone service paid for by the City. At this time, there is an "honor system" in place whereby employees are to highlight personal calls and reimburse the City for such calls. 
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For the selected month of cellular service, we noted that 19 general ledger accounts were charged for cellular telephone usage. Of these accounts, seven (totaling $786.71) had reimbursements posted to them; twelve accounts (totaling $1,921.35) bore no evidence of reimbursement. For the three months of long distance calls made from City telephones, we reviewed the carrier bills for calls in excess of 30 minutes and also for multiple calls made to the same number during the month. A list of these calls was complied and circulated to the individual's extension from which the call was rnade so the call could be identified as to its business purpose. The responses were then tested on a scope basis using the national telephone directory on CD-ROM at the NLU library. Numerous instances were noted of calls to personal residences for which reimbursement to the City was not made, while in other cases personal calls were reimbursed. The monthly interexchange carrier billings to the City are approximately $1,100 per month. We examined the cash receipts posted to the telephone expense general ledger account, noting approximately only a nominal amount in reimbursements for the fiscal year. The results of our sample and the low rate of reimbursement indicate that the City is not being reimbursed for all personal long distance calls made on City accounts. Finally, per review of the local exchange carrier bills, we noted that City employees are using call-completion and other "star" features when using directory assistance. This call completion service ranges from $.31 to $.75 per call; we determined that the total of these charges was approximately $3,000 for the year ended April 30, 1997. 
Recommendation: We make the following recommendations for telecommunications practices of the City: 
Formal procedures should be adopted regarding what employee classification or function will be provided a cellular telephone, how many telephones an individual will be allowed to have and how personal use will be reimbursed to the City. The most expedient method may be for the City to provide cellular service for department heads only; others in the City should acquire their own service and submit reimbursement requests for calls made on City business. 2. Formal procedures should be adopted for reimbursement of long distance tolls of a per,~onal nature made on the City's interexchange carrier bill. Calls in excess of a predetermined duration or multiple calls to the same number could be extracted from the billing detail and followed up, perhaps by internal audit, as to the nature of the call and, if applicable, if reimbursement to the City was made. The need for physical security of access codes should also be stressed to employees, so that it is more difficult for unauthorized users to make long distance calls. 
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3. Persormel should be discouraged from using call completion services and be educated as to the local optional service dialing radius so that the lower direct dial rates can be employed as often as possible, and "star" features should be blocked on City lines. 
Response: These recommendations will be implemented throughout each department. 
7. 'Taxation and Revenue Procedures 
Finding: During our review of internal controls and transaction processing at the Revenue and 'Taxation Department, we noted certain matters involving the processing of sales tax collections which could be improved. We noted that due to an apparent lack of communication between accounting and taxation and revenue, checks received NSF are not restored to the taxpayers account and are not adequately followed up on for timely collection. When an account number is entered by the data entry operator, a location code associated with that account number defaults the operator to the proper column; however, the operator can override the default with no supervisory review. Input batches are balanced daily to the prior day's register total; however, they are not balanced within each jurisdiction, e.g., Monroe, Ouachita Parish, West Monroe. This further compounds the risk that taxpayer-submitted information could be credited to the wrong jurisdiction. We also noted that the information submitted by the taxpayer is not always correct; the sales data is, at times, placed in the incorrect tax jurisdiction and/or in the wrong category. Another area of concern is the follow up by revenue and taxation and the City's legal department of delinquent taxpayers and taxpayers who remit with an NSF check. 
Recommendation We recommend that the City's MIS department and revenue and taxation department perform an exhaustive review of the current software and user requirements for the processing of sales tax returns. Management of the City should also examine in detail how to involve the City's legal department in a timely and effective manner in the legal pursuit of delinquent fliers. Taxpayers who pay with NSF checks should be handled in a manner more consistent with those utility customers who pay for water and sewerage services with NSF checks so that the collection of those items can be effected, input data should be balanced back to source documents by taxing jurisdiction (not just total collections)to help identify taxpayer errors and/or data entry errors as soon as possible. The data base could be sorted by vendor by jurisdiction 
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by classification and an exception repo~t be printed for variances which exceed a predetermined percent or dollar amount in relation to the prior month's remittance or, possibly, some average of the prior three months. We understand that the revenue and taxation processing software utilizes many on-fine reporting features; however, certain reports (such as the delinquent list and the payment history report) should be further stratified and hard copy management reports be printed for accounts which exceed predetermined parameters. This would enable more timely identification and, as a result, more timely follow up and disposition of significant or chronic problem fliers. Response: The City will continue to receive incorrect information submitted by the taxpayer. We will implement the following procedures to insure that errors and irregularities are timely identified during data entry and supervisory review will be provided to insure that the appropriatE; tax jurisdiction receives the amount remitted. Modification of Tax Form - We will schedule several meetings with the taxpayer and solicit their comments and ideas regarding filing their returns on the present form. The objective will be to simplify the tax form to assist them in preparing the returns. This will reduce the amount of errors as submitted by each taxpayer. 
2. Edit Checks - We will implement edit checks into the system to identify both return errors and data entry errors which will also require management authorization to continue the processing of the return. The objective will be to insure that the correct tax jurisdictions are credited for the correct amounts. Accounting for" NSF Checks - We will debit a taxpayers account upon the receipt of an NSF check. This will immediately place the taxpayer in a delinquent status where further collection procedures will be perfermed. Variance Edits .- We will request and previde an exception report to identify major variances from correct information as submitted by the taxpayers. The system will already prevent data entry of incorrect sales tax remitted as a percent of the gross sales reported. However, the variance exception report will immediately assist management by identifying major changes in the growth or decline of sales by the laxpayer. Legal Proceedings for Delinquent Fliers - The Tax & Revenue department will timely identify and provide a listing of delinquent taxpayers to the Legal Department of the City of Monroe and to the Legal Departrnent of Ouachita Parish to assist in the collection of taxes from delinquent fliers. 
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A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control structure elements does not reduce to an acceptably low level the risk that errors or irregularities in amounts that would be material in relation to the general purpose financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal control structure would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control structure that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses as defined above. However, we believe reportable conditions number 3., 5. and 7. described above to be material weaknesses. These conditions were considered in determining the nature, timing and extent of the procedures to be performed in our audit of the financial statements of the City for the year ended April 30, 1997. We also noted other matters involving the internal control structure and its operation that we have that we have reported to the management of the City in a separate letter dated October 10. 1997. This report is intended for the management of the City, its cognizant audit agency, other agencies granting funds to the City and the Legislative Auditor of the state of Louisiana. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 
October 10, 1997 
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II-'~ Luffey Ftuffman & Monroe CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
INDE'PENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE BASED ON AN AUDIT OF GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

City of Monroe, Louisiana Monroe, Louisiana We have audited the general purpose financial statements of City of Monroe, Louisiana (the City), as of and for the year ended April 30, 1997, and have issued our report thereon dated October 10. 1997. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, the standards for financial and compliance audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United State,~ and the Louisiana GovernmentalAudif Guide issued by thE; Louisiana Legislative Auditor and the Louisiana So~-iety of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audil to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. Compliance with laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to the City is the responsibility of the City's management. As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of the City's compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. However, the objective of our audit of the general purpose financial statements was not to provide an opinion on overall compliance with such provisions. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. Material instances of noncompliance are failures to follow requirements, or violations of prohibitions, contained in statutes, regulations, contracts or grants, that cause us to conclude that the aggregation of misstatements resulting from those failures or violations is material to the general purpose financial statements. The results of our tests of compliance disclosed the following material instance of noncompliance. 
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1. Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 
Finding: In performance of our procedures on the transactions of the Policemen Pension and Relief Fiduciar3~ Fund (the City sponsored pension plan) for the year ended April 30, 1997, we noted that administrative expense for the year increased by approximately $60,000 from the prior fiscal year. Upon further inquiry, we noted that the increase was attributable to the City's payment on June 28, 1996 to transfer an employee's service from the state Municipal Employees Retirement System (MERS) into the state Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (MPERS). The employee's initial date of hire with the City was November 20, 1972, and has been employed continuously to date in a clerical capacity. On August 30, 1986, the Louisiana State Legislature enacted Act. No. 605 which stated that secretarie,~ to Chiefs of Police were ineligible to remain members of the MERS. The employee became secretary to the Chief effective April 16, 1984; therefore, she was no longer eligible to be a participant in the MERS subsequent to August 30, 1986. From August, 1986 to June, 1988 contributions were continuing to be made to the MERS. From July, 1988 forward, contributions were made and service credited to the MPERS. The employee brought the matter of past service credits (1972 through 1984) and contributions to the MERS to the attention of the two state retirement systems and management of the City. The City obtained an actuarial calculation of the cost to transfer the employee's service credits from the M[-RS to the MPERS; the transfer cost was approximately $50,000. On June 28, 1996 the City paid the transfer cost to the MPERS by a check drawn on the City-sponsored plan (of whic, h the employee was never a member). As a result, the net assets available for benefits in the City- sponsored plan have decreased by $50,000. In May, 1997 an attorney general's opinion was requested on behalf of the Association of Secretaries of Chiefs of Police which cited the options available to employees affected by Act 605; the opinion did not provide for payment by municipalities of transfer credits from public funds as an option; therefore, it appears that the City's actions have resulted in an illegal donation of public property Recommendation We recommend that, in light of the significant decline in the net assets of the City- sponsored plan, the City obtain an actuarial valuation of the Policemen's Pension and Relief Fund te evaluate whether adequate assets exist to fund the pension commitments under the plan. In addition, we feel the City should consult with legal counsel to determine what options are available to provide for the recoupment of the expended funds from either the state MPERS or from the employee on whose behalf these payments were made. 
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Response: 
We will further investigate this situation and decide if a second attorney general's opinion should be sought addressing the specific question as to whether the payment to the MPERS could be made from the city-sponsored plan. 
We considered these instances of noncompliance in forming our opinion on whether the City's April 30, 1997, general purpose financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, and this report does not affect our report dated October 10, 1997, on those general purpose financial statements. We noted certain immaterial instances of noncompliance that we have reported to the management of the City in a separate letter dated October 10, 1997. This report is intended for the management of the City, its cognizant audit agency, other agencies granting funds to the City and the Legislative Auditor of the state of Louisiana. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 
October 10, 1997 
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I!-m~ Luffey Ftuffman & Monroe CERTIFIED PUBLICACCOUNFANTS 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE INTERNAL CONTROL STRUCTURE USED IN ADMINISTERING FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS 

City of Monroe, Louisiana Monroe, Louisiana 

John L. Lufloy, MB,~ (PA FIancis I Hufrlr'orl, CPA L. Fred Mor/ioo, CPA Esther AileDo.ily, CPA CQfoIyn A. Clork~.,, CF'A 

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of City of Monroe, Louisiana (the City), as of and for the year ended April 30, 1997, and have issued our report thereon dated October 10, 1997. We conducted our audits in accordance: with generally accepted auditing standards, the standards for financial and compliance audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-128, Audits of State and Local Governments and the Louisiana GovernmentalAudit Guide issued by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor and the Louisiana Society of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards and OMB Circular A-128 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether the City complied with laws and regulations, noncompliance with which would be material to a major Federal financial assistance program. In planning and performing our audit for the year ended April 30, 1997, we considered the City's internal control structure in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the City's general purpose financial statements and on its compliance with requirements applicable to major programs and to report on the internal control structure in accordance with OMB Circular A-128. This report addresses our consideration of internal control structure policies and procedures relevant to compliance with requirements applicable to Federal financial assistance programs. We have addressed policies and procedures relevant to our audit of the general purpose financial statements in a separate report dated October 10, 1997. 
The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure. In fulfilling this responsibility, estimates and judgements by management are required to assess the expected benefits and related costs of internal control structure policies and procedures. The objectives of an internal control structure are to provide management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are [318] 387-2672 FAX [318) 322-8866 Page 148 00 N 18th ST * PO Box 4745 ,, Monroe LA 71211-4745 MEMBERS OF 1HE AMERICAN INSTIrUIE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNrANTS 
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safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, that transactions are executed in accordance with managen'ient's authorization and recorded properly to permit the preparation of general purpose financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that Federal financial assistance programs are managed in compliance with applicable laws and regulations. Because of inherent limitations in any internal control structure, errors, irregularities or instances of noncompliance may nevertheless occur and not be detected. Also, projection of any evaluation of the structure to future periods is subject to the risk that procedures may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the effectiveness of the design and operation of policies and procedures may deteriorate. For the purpose of this report, we have classified the significant internal control structure policies and pro(;edures used in administering Federal financial assistance programs in the following categories: General Requirements Specific Requirements * Political activity * Types of services allowed or not allowed * Civil rights * Eligibility * Cash management * Matching, level of effort or earmarking * Federal financial reports * Special reports * Allowable costs/cost principles * Special tests and provisions * Drug-free Workplace Act * Claims for advances and reimbursement * Administrative requirements For all of the internal control structure categories listed above, we obtained an understanding of the design of relevant policies and procedures and determined whether they have been placed in operation, arid we assessed control risk. During the year ended April 30, 1997, the City expended 86.8% of its total Federa financial assistance under major Federal financial assistance progiams. We performed tests of controls as required by OMB Circular A-128, to evaluate the effectiveness of the design and operation of internal control structure policies and procedures that we considered relevant to preventing or detecting material noncompliance with specific requirements and general requirements that are applicable to each of the City's major Federal financial assistance programs, which are identified in the accompanying Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance. Our procedures were less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on these internal control structure policies and procedures. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. We noted certain matters involving the internal control structure and its operation that we consider to be reportable conditions under standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the 
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internal control structure that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the City's ability to administer Federal financial assistance programs in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. 1. General Fixed Assets Finding: 
As part of eur tests of the City's general fixed assets, we visually inspected purchases totaling $1,694,042 (the majority of which were rolling stock). We noted two items which were not on the General Fixed Assets Detail as of April 30, 1997, as follows: Cost Airport Fire & Rescue Vehicle, purchased February 27, 1997 $297,815 Three-boom Deck Mower, purchased ,July 26, 1996 29,900 
To determine if these were isolated incidents, we then selected purchases greater than $10,000 from the departmental details and traced them to inclusion on the master fixed assets detail. The items in this test totalled 19, with an aggregate cost of $419,343. Fourteen items were properly included on the detail list (totalling $352,443). However, 6 Ford Tauruses (total of $66,900) purchased in January and March, 1997 were not included on the detail list but were included on the Pending Assets Report. It was represented to us that all information required for the transfer of these vehicles to the fixed asset detail (the titles) had not been obtained. Further comparison of the 14 items noted above on the fixed asset detail listing disclosed that 3 of the assets were on both the Pending Assets List and the fixed asset detail. Recommendation: 
To ensure completeness of the City's inventory of General Fixed Assets, we recommend the following: 1) All capital expenditure accounts should be examined by property control on a monthly basis for purchases of capital items to see that they are properly included on the fixed asset detail listing or the Pending Asset Report; 2) All repairs and maintenance accounts should be examined by a responsible individual on a quarterly basis for capital items incorrectly charged to expense; and, 3) Periodically, personnel in Property Control should compare the fixed asset detail to the Pending Asset Report to identify any assets listed in both places. In addition, procedures should be put in place to monitor the length of time an 
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asset is allowed to stay on the Pending Asset Report prior to its transfer to the fixed asset detail listing. Response These recommendations will be implemented with Central Purchasing. Incorrect coding should lessen. A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control structure elements does not reduce to an acceptably low level the risk that errors or irregularities in amounts that would be rnaterial in relation to the general purpose financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal control structure would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control structure that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses defined above. However, we believe the reportable condition described above to be a material weakness. This condition was considered in determining the nature, tin'ling and extent of the procedures to be performed in our audit of the financial statements of the City for the year ended April 30, 1997. However, we also noted other matters involving the internal control structure and its operation that we have reported to the management of the City in a separate letter dated Oclober 10. 1997. This report is intended for the management of the City, its cognizant audit agency, other agencies granting funds to the City and the Legislative Auditor of the state of Louisiana. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 

October 10, 1997 
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II',~ Luffey Fluffman & Monroe CERIIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTAN1S 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE! TO MAJOR FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS 

City of Monroe, Louisiana Monroe, Louisiana WE; have audited the general purpose financial statements of City of Monroe, Louisiana (the City), as of and for the year ended April 30, 1997, and have issued our report thereon dated October 10, 1997. We have also audited the City's compliance with the requirements governing types of services allowed or unallowed; eligibility; matching, level of effort, or earmarking; special tests and provisions required by the Compliance Supplement for Single Audits of State and Local Governments; and claims for advances and reimbursements that are applicable to each of its major Federal financial assistance programs, which are identified in the accompanying Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance, for the year ended April 30, 1997. The managemenl of the City is responsible for the City's compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance with those requirements based on our audit. We conducted our audit of compliance with those requirements in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, the; standards for financial and compliance audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-128 Audits of State and Local Governments. Those standards and OMB Circular A-128 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance wilh the requirements referred to above occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance with those requirements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. The results of our audit procedures did net disclose any immaterial instances of noncompliance with the requirements referred to above. In our opinion, the; City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements governing types of services allowed or unallowed; eligibility; matching, level of effort, or earmarking; special reports; special tests and provisions required by the Compliance Supplement for Single Audits of State and Local Governments; and claims for advances [318] 387-2672 FAX (318) 322-8866 Page 152 100 N 18~h ST ~ PO Box 4745 ,, Monroe LA 71211~4745 ME MBERS OF THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTAN1S 
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and reimbursements that are applicable to each of its major Federal financial assistance programs for the; year ended April 30, 1997. This report is intended for the information of management of the City, its cognizant audit agency, other agencies granting funds to the City and the Legislative Auditor of the state of Louisiana. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 
October 10, 1997 
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NDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE GENERAL REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS 

City of Monroe, Louisiana Monroe, Louisiana We have audited the general purpose financial statements of City of Monroe, Louisiana (the City), as of and for the year ended April 30, 1997, and have issued our report thereon dated October 10, 1997, We have also applied procedures to test the City's compliance with the following requirements applic.able to its Federal financial assistance programs, which are identified in the Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance, for the year ended April 30, 1997: political activity, Davis-Bacon Act, civil rights, cash management, Federal financial reports, allowable costs/cost principles, Drug-Free Workplace Act: and administrative requirements. 
Our procedures were limited to the applicable procedures described in the Office of Management and Budget's Compliance Supplement for Single Audits of State and Local Governments. Our procedures were substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion on the City's compliance with the requirements listed in the preceding paragraph. Accordingly, we do not express such an ()pinion. With respect to the items tested, results of those procedures disclosed no material instances of noncompliance with the requirements listed in the second paragraph of this report. With respect to items not tested, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the City had not complied, in all material respects, with those requirements. Also, the results of our procedures did not disclose any immaterial instances of noncompliance with those requirements. This report is intended for the management of the City, its cognizant audit agency, other agencies granting funds to the City and the Legislative Auditor of the state of Louisiana. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 
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CITY OF MONROE, LOUISIANA Monroe, Louisiana STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 
The following is a summary of the status of the material prior year findings included in our reports on compliance dated September 6, 1996 covering our examination of the financial statements of the City of Monroe, Louisiana as of and for the year ended April 30, 1996: aterial Findin~,s -. In Finding 
Certain receivables relating to property and sales tax were not booked in the general ledger by tile Taxation and Revenue Department as a result of failure to restore payments returned as NSF to the system. 
Sta~!us: See current year finding No. 7 in the Independent Auditors' Report on Inte.rnal Control Structurc Based on an Audit of General Purpose Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 
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To the Honorable City Counc City of Monroe Monroe, Louisiana 
In planning and performing our audit of the general purpose financial statements of the Oily of Monroe (the City) for the year ended April 30, 1997, we considered its internal control structure in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the general purpose financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control structure. However, during our audit we became aware of certain matters that are opportunities for strengthening internal controls. This letter will summarize our comments and suggestions regarding those matters. "This letter does not affect our report dated October 10, 1997, on the general purpose financial statements of the City. 
1. City-provided Vehicles Finding: 
In performing our tests of activity in the General Fixed Asset Account Group for the year ended April 30, 1997, we noted that a 1995 Ford F150 pickup truck had been transferred from the Fire Department to the Mayor's Department in March, 1997. The truck is parked at City Hall, in a space designated "Reserved for Mayor's Administrative Assistant". Additionally, the cellular telephone installed in the truck is captioned on the bill summary as "Mayor's Truck"; there is also another cellular telephone; on the bill summary captioned "Mayor A. Pierce". Article III, Section 3-08 of the City Charter states, in part, "The Mayor shall be entitled to be furnished a suitable automobile . . .". The City purchased a 1996 Chevrolet Caprice for the Mayor when he took office. The truck above appears to have been provided to the Mayor in violation of the City Charter, as he has now been provided with two vehicles. 
Recommendation: We recommend that the cellular phone be removed from the truck and the truck be reassigned to another department or that it be declared surplus and sold. 
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Response: The truck and the telephone have been properly assigned to Public Works 
2. Payroll Processing 
Finding: In our tests of payroll transactions and employee data files, we selected 40 employees out of a population of approximately 1,300 for testing. In the sample of 40 employees, we noted the following: W-4 and L-4 dated between 1/85 and 12/91 W-4 unsigned and/or undated W-4 and L-4 with last name different from name on payroll check I-9 employer section incomplete I-9 required, not completed 

26 3 
3 3 1 Internal Revenue Service regulations do not require the submission of a W-4 each year. Immigration and Naturalization Service rules require an I-9 be completed for all persons hired after November 6, 198[}. Of the 40 employees tested, 18 were hired after that date. The four exceptions noted above indicate an error rate in the sample of 22%. Recommendation,: We recommend that the City's Human Resources Department ebtain updated W-4's and L-4's from all employees prior to December 31, 1997; annually thereafter, a notice should be circulated to employees to remind them that if they have had a change in their name or income tax filing status they should complete updated forms to insure the correct tax reporting and withholding is taking place. Further, the Human Resources department should e>'amine all employee files to ensure that employees hired after November 6, 1986 have I-9's in their files which are complete in all respects. 

Response: These recommendations will be followed 
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3. Local Government Budget Act Finding: The Local Government Budget Act as it applies to the City requires a budget be adopted for the General Fund and all Special Revenue Funds maintained by the City. In our review of budget adoptions and amendments, we noted that the City did not adopt budgets for 3 Special Revenue Funds out of a total of 26 such funds. These funds were the MPD Law Enforcement Block Grant, the Junior Tennis Fund and the Prosecuting Attorney Intervention Fund. The first financial activity noted in the Law Enforcement Block Grant Fund and the Junior Tennis Fund occurred in February, 1997. The Intervention Fund was included in the General Fund for the year ended April 30, 1997; the decision to treat the fund as a Special Revenue Fund was not made until after the end of the fiscal year. The City's policy regarding Special Revenue Funds is to amend their budgets once per year, at the time of final .amendment of tile General Fund budget (April 8, 1997 in this case). 
Recommendation: We recommend the City ensure that it has adopted budgets for all Special Revenue Funds by developing a checklist of fund.'; with current fiscal activity prior to the adoption of the final amended General Fund budget. -i"he Department of Administration should review revenue sources and communicate with other departments as to the existence of new grant or other revenue sources which would require the use of a Special Revenue Fund to further provide fer budget adoptions in this area. Response lhe administration will make every effert to see that all Special Revenue funds are budgeted. 
4. Petty Cash 
Finding: During fiscal 1997, the City's internal auditor conducted petty cash counts at various locations in the City. All were found to be correct with the exception of the Louisiana Purchase Gardens and Zoo which was found to be $144 short. Upon further investigation, it was discovered that a clerk at the Zoo had taken the money to the bank for change and had forgot to return it to petty cash upon her return. As part of our audit procedures, we counted petty cash at locations not audited by the City during the year, as well as revisiting certain locations already tested by the internal 
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auditor. We discovered the following discrepancies Location Louisiana Purchase Gardens & Zoo Johnson Recreation Center Golf Courses 

Per Accounting $4,000 30 5O0 
Per Custodian $1,500 10 430 We noted the most current listing in the accounting department of petty cash custodians and the amount they are responsible for is dated 1994. Recommendation: 

We recommend that the City update its list of petty cash custodians as soon as possible, the amount they are responsible for and the general ledger account the balance is recorded to. Accompanying this list should be a form denoting the amount of petty cash authorized, the custodian and signatures of the custodian and a representative from the accounting department agreeing to the amount. The list should be updated at least annually. This is particularly important in the outlying areas of the City's operations. Finally, we recommend the City's internal auditor continue to make random surprise petty cash counts using the updated list. 
Response: These recommendations will be followed 
5. Golf Course Green Fees Finding: During the period from April 9 to May 16, 1997, there were four golf tournaments held at Chennault Park for which participants were charged a discounted fee. These discounts were for $7-8 less per participant than the fees required by City ordinance, resulting in over $3,800 in lost revenue. Legal counsel for the I..ouisiana Legislative Auditor has stated that such discounts are an illegal donation of public property or assets. Recommendation 
We recommend that the City Council adopt an ordinance or amend the existing ordinance to be consistent with the state laws regarding use of public property and that the provisions of that ordinance be clearly communicated to Community Affairs personnel, the director of golf and personnel at the pro shops to avoid any future problems of this nature. 
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Response: No discounts are now being given. The fees, as established by ordinance, will be charged. 
6. Interfund Transactions Finding: As of April 30, 1996 the General Fund and the Insurance Internal Service Fund had long-term advances to certain Enterprise Funds totaling approximately $2,700,000. It is our understanding from discussions with City personnel and review of the general ledger balances that these situations are not improving. That is, the Enterprise Funds are in reality no closer to being able to fund those interfund liabilities; the end result will be a decrease in available fund balance in the General Fund. At a time when the City is facing the possibility of funding significant infrastructure improvements (water and sewerage lines and facilities), the increased annual funding of possibly in excess of $600,000 of insurance premiums for employees under tile new health care plan, the funding of the urlpaid claims from the old self insurance plan (quite possibly over $1,000,000) and having to postpone capital expenditures to future years. Recommendation 
Management of the City should develop a comprehensive plan to bring all areas of operations of the City back to a fiscally prudent position. This action plan will also need to encompass the future funding necessary to cover the deficiencies in certain Debt Service Funds (the Street Assessment, Urban Systems A'.;sessment and 1988 Street Overlay - Phase II funds in particular), as the Special Assessments purporting to repay the outstanding debt are either insufficient or in such a state of delinquency as to be nonexistent. 
Response: The overall financial position of the city is being studied. These funds are to be brought in line; within the near future;. 
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7. Sewerage Treatment Plant Operations 
Finding: The Environrnental Protection Agency (EPA) has fined the City $25,000 after an inspection of the City's sewerage treatment plant. The EPA cited three violations of the permit the City has to operate the plant. It is also notable that the City is under an order from the Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) for clean-up operations which are anticipated to cost over $750,000 over the next two years. We understand that the City is moving forward with plans to improve the sewerage treatment facility, including funding of a $3,500,000 study on how to most efficiently modernize the plant. 
Recommendation: We recommend the City move forward with best possible speed in bringing its sewerage treatment facility up to EPA and DEQ standards. In the interim, operating personnel at the facility should be properly trained in their tasks so that violations such as those fron'l the regulatory agencies will not occur. Response: Engineers are under contract to bring about compliance with EPA and DEQ 
8. Travel Expense Reporting 
Finding: From a review of the travel expense accumulated transactions listing, we selected 22 expense reports for further detail testing. City policy requires submission of an expense report no later than 5 business days following the last day of travel, and that the employee subrnit a check with the expense report for any travel advance not expended. Of the 22 items selected, we noted 5 instances, ranging from 7 to 28 days, where tile expense report was submitted past the required 5 days. Eight of the 22 expense reports required reimbursement checks back to the City; one of these 8 expense reports did not include the reimbursement of $23.15 due the City. Such amount was still outstanding as of July 30, 1997 and could be construed as an illegal loan of public funds. One of the 22 expense reports examined was for travel by an employee to a seminar. Given the dates of the seminar and the timing of the trip, approximately $100 of the charges incurred could have been avoided. 
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Recommendation: 
We recommend the City take steps to ensure the requirements of the City's travel policies are being adhered to, including those regarding timely submission of expense reports and reimbursements of travel advances. For extended out-of-town travel, department heads should review and approve itineraries in advance to confirm that only norrnal and necessary travel expenditures are incurred. 
Response: 
The city of Monroe's travel policy will be outlined and discussed at Mayor Pierce's staff meeting and within certain departments if necessary. 
October 10, 1997 


